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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., )
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC, and )
THERESA A. SLYMAN, }
)
Plaintiffs, )]
)
v, ) Neo, 93-C-0325

| )

FISHER CONTROLS ) Judge Reynolds
INTERNATIONAL, INC. )
' )
Defendant. )

STIPULATION AND ORDER

FOR DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE,
Plaintiffs, Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman Industries, Inc. and Theresa A. Slyman,
and defendant Fisher Controls Intemational, Inc., by their respective attorneys, hereby stipulate
to the dismissal of this case with prejudice, with each party to bear her or its own costs andj

attorneys’ fees.

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and INC.

THERESA A, SLYMAN
By: /;{‘M //7’.

- «Carmen. D, Caruso Hndrew R. Running
NOONAN & CARUSO KIRKLAND & ELLIS
122 South Michigan Avenue 200 East Randolph Drive

Chicago, Illinois 60603 Chicago, Illinois 60601




ORDER

On the parties’ foregoing stipulation, this case is hereby dismissed with prejudice,

with each party to bear her or its own costs and attomeys’ fees.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
BASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUREE DIE CASTING CO,, )
SL.YMAN INDUSYRIES, INC, and )
THERESA A. SLYMAN §
Plainiiffs, g
v. ',; No. 93-C-0325
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, % Fudge Reynolds
)
)
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the contamination at thelr die casting facility, The resulis of that investigation are due to be
subumitted to the Wisconsin Departzent of Nataral Resouroes in August, The site investigation
will result in new eoil and groundwater sampling dats that could have & material impact on the
selection f the site remedy GF any is required) emd on the pasties’ allocation of responsibility for
that remedy. The parties agres that it would be unproductive to hold 1 settlement conference
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Respectfully submitted,
MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO,, FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
SLYMANINDUSTRIES,MC '
and THERESA A. SLYMAN
By: __ By —
One of Their Attorneys By One of Its Attorneys
DATED: June 23, 1997
co0m _SITIA Y ONVIININ P2 65 002Z 198 ZIC VA 6S:T IWI L6/03/90
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? MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
| SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC., and
THERESA, A. SLYMAN,

Plaintiffs,

Y. " Civil Actjon No. 93-C-0325
Flsmcomms INTERNATIONAL, |
. mc.;

Defendant.

ORDER

Following a court trial, this court ruled that defendant is liable to plaintiffs
| under CERCLA, 42 U.S8.C. 59613(f).for1tsequitableshareofmcavmblerespmc
costs for the remediation of hazardous wastes at the Milwankee Die Casting Co. site.

,] On December 13, 1996, at the request of the parties, ﬁr.;aljudgmsnt was entered

| Mntmxm 54(b). Defendant then filed a notice of appeal. On May 9, 1997, the
Al Seventh Circuit dizmissed the appeal for lack of jurisdiction, finding the appeal to be
pr@mamrebccamthedamageslssuehadmjretbeendecided.

The parties request settlement assistance. This action is therefore mferxed o




SENT BY:FAX# (414) 273-5188  6- 5-37 ; 8:47PM ;GODFREY & KAMN. 8.C.- 3146942020:# 4/ 4

-

| The_Clerkomemisinxtrucmdtﬁforwardﬂie--ﬁlezforthisicﬁanm
' SO ORDERED this _.S_glray:of-lm. 1997.
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SENT BY:FAXZ (414) 273-3188 : 4-18-87 i 5:19PX ;GODFREY & KAHN, 8.C.- 31463442920:# 3/ 3
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' WUnited States Court of Appeals .
' For the Seventh Circuit )
Cﬁ&mgg¢nﬁno&¢ﬁkxm

April 14, 1997

Before

Hon. RICHARD A. POSNER, Chief Judge
Hon. ILANA DIAMOND ROVNER, Circuit Judge
Hoa. DIANE P. WOOD, Circuir Judge

MILWAUXEE DIE CASTING -COMPANY, & -
Wisconsin corporation, SLYMAN
INDUSTRIES, INCORFORATED, a Delaware
corporacion and THRRESA A. SLYMAN, -
an individual resident of Chio,
Plaintiffs-Appellees,

Appeal from the United
Stateg District Court for
the Bastern District of
Wisconsin. .

No. 93 C 325

No. 97-1020 : v, John W. Reynolds,

Judge.
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, -
INCORPORATBD. a Delaware
corporarion,
Defendant-Appellant.

The following are before the court:

i. JURISDICTIONAL HEHDREHDUH QOF FIJSHEZR CONTROLS
INTEENATIOHAL, INC., " filed on February.il, 1937, by
counsel for the appellant. .

P 2. RESPONSE OF APPELLERS TO APPELLANT'S JURISDICTIONAL
v MEMORANDUM, filed on March 17, 1997, by counsel for the
i appellees. .

of jurisdiction on the ground that it is premature. See Liberty
Mitual Ingurance Co, v, Wetgzel, 424 U.5. 737 (1976) (Declaracion of
liability without computation of damages may not be appealed even
if the district court enters the judgment under Fed. R. Civ.

W
4 The court, on its own motion, DISMISSES thie appeal for lack
54 (b)) . .
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and
THERESA A. SLYMAN
Plaintiffs,
v, No. 93-C-0325

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, Judge Reynolds

INC,,

Defendant.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT
ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF APPEAL

Pursuant to Seventh Circuit Rules j(c)(l) and 28(b), defeﬁdant Fisher Controls
International, Inc. states as follows:

1. The jurisdiction of the District Court is based on 28 U.S.C. § 1331, federal
quéstion. 'i‘he plaintiffs’ claim arises from § 113(f) of the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation & Liability Act of 1980, as ain‘ended-, 42 US.C. §9613(f)
(“CERCLAM),

-2, The District Court’s Partial Final Judgment was entered on December 13, 1996.
No motion for a new trial or alteration of the judgment ;:r any other motion that would toll the

time within which to appeal has been filed, The judgment declares that the defendant is a lisble

party under CERCLA § 113(f), but does not resolve the amount of the plaintiffs’ recoverable

" CERCLA response costs or the defendant’s equitable share of those costs. However, the parties

have agreed to submit those issues to binding arbitration in the event that the District Court’s




liability ruling is sustained on appeal. Therefore, no further matters are pending at this time in the
District Court. Pursuant to FRCP 54(b), the District Court has expressly determined in the order
granting pa.rtiﬂ final judgment that there is “no just reason for delay in the entry of judgment as to

tiability.”

DATED: December 30, 1996 Respectfully submitted,

A

One df the Attorneys for Defendant
Fisher Controls International, Ine.

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, S.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, Itinois 60601
(312) 861-2000

2
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I today caused the foregoing Notice of Appeal and
Turisdictional Statement Accompanying Notice of Appéal to be served on the following persons
by first-class U.S. mail:

_ Carmen D. Caruso, Esq. Laurie McElroy, Esq.

Foran & Schultz Whyte Hirschboeck Dudek, S.C.
30 North La Salle Street 111 East Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 3000 Suite 2100

Chicago, Tllinois 60602 Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Lt

Andrew R. Rumung

DATED: December 30, 1996
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC, and
THERESA A. SLYMAN
Plaintiffs,
V.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
INC,,

Defendant.

)

)

)

)

)

) .

) No. 93-C-0325
)

) Judge Reynolds
)

)

)

NOTICE OF APPEAL

_ Notice is hereby given that defendant Fisher Controls International, Inc. hereby appeals to

the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit from the District Court’s Rule 54(b)

Partial Final Judgment entered in this action on December 13, 1996.

DATED; December 30, 1996

Respectfully submitted,

/S

One of the Attorneys for Defendant

Fisher Controls Intemational, Inc.

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, S.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500

- Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, Illinois 60601
{(312) 861-2000
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AT oK
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURy-S2FRoNs. NEOISIT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

— e M

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING coO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC., and
TBERESA A. SLYMAN,

Plaintiffs,
2 : . Civil Action No. 93-C-0325
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
INC.,
Defend-nt.
The cour ~ ty and damages in this

envirommental clez Jowing a court trial on

liability, the cow - ernational, Inc., is liable to

plaintiffs. The ¢ final judgment pursuant to

ich request the court grants. The

-

parties have agr?u‘?aw,

\ a that if this court is affirmed on
appeal with respect to the hahlllty"\ ng the exhaustion of any other
appeals with respect to liability, the parties shall Submit the i issue of damages to bmdmg

arbitration. There is therefore no just reason fox delay in the entry of judgment as to

Hability.

o
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FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

¥ mwmmm I)IE CASTING CO.,

v. . . Civil Action No. 93-C-0325

' FISHEW. CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,

INC.,

Defendent.

ORDER

The court previously bifurcated the issues of liability and damages in this
mnmemﬂclmn-upacuon OnSeptembcrlz 1996, following & court trial on
habﬂxty.thecourtfaundthatdcfendamtherCmuulslnmﬁmal Inc., is lisble to

| Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which request the court grants. The
pa:ﬁashavugreedbysﬁpuhﬁonﬁmmmﬂwmmtifmmmisafﬁmédm
app@wimmmtbeﬁnbﬂkyhs;le,andfoﬂowhgmemnfmyoﬂmr
appeals with respect to lisbility, the parties shall submit the issue of damages to binding

| arbitration. There is therefore no just reason for delay in the entry of judgment as to




SENT BY:FAX# (414) 273-5188 ;12-17-96 : 4:12PN ;GODFREY & KAHN. S.C.-~ 4146042820:# 4/ &

IT 1S THEREFORE ORDERED THAT final judgment be entered in favor

| of plaintiffs and against defendant on the issue that defendant is liable to plaintiffs under

CERCLA § 113(f), 42 U.S.C. § 9613(f), for Its equitable gshare of recoverable response

costs for the remediation of hazardous wastes at m Milwaukee Dic Casting Co. aite,
which is the subject of plaintiffs® amended complaint.

| SO ORDERED this /=5 iy of December, 1996.

&5 TRA
(Rav. 382




SENT BY:FAX# (414) 273-5188 :12-17-98 : 4:13PM ;GODFREY & KAHN. 8.C.~ 5146842520:% 5/ 5

AL G20 (Rev, B/BS] Judpmans in o Cisll Cace &
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EASTERN DISTRICT OF ... WZBCONSIN
MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.., EBRTIAL '
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and JUDGMENT IN A CIVIL CASE

TEERESA A. B\I;YHABT.

FLSHER CONTROLS

{3 Jury Verdice. This sction cama bafore the Coust for & trial by Jury, The lssues have bean tried and tha jury hes rendered
it uverdice..

K] Dedtlon by Court. This action came to trisl oz hearing before the Court.

IT i£ ORDERED AND ADJUDGED  that the defendant is liable to plaintiffs
under CERCLA § 113(f}, 42 U.5.C. § 961l3{(f},; for its aquitable
share of recaverable response costs for the remediation of
hazardous wastes at the Milwaukes Die Casting Co. site, which

is the aubject of plaintiffs? amended complaint.

Pacembey 13, 199§
Dave

Lopy mailed ur avtorreys for
parties by the Courl pursusne
o Fed. R. Civ. BT
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Y | g
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HOM. O8N W 2TVvang g (.
. ( .
¢ FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL
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APPEZARANCES: Pltfs: EdwexdHediger—$-—Laurie Mclheroy 273-2100
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Deft: Michael Ash 2333588 X8 T7-95 70
and
Andrew Running (will call in)

DISPOSITION: |
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT (
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN /
MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., ) ce: T. Bistline
G. Davidson
a Wisconsin corporation, ) D. Moore
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES INC-, & ) M. Shanpon
Delaware corporation, and ) M. Ash.
THERESA A. SLYMAN, an ) J. Schink
individeal resident of Ohio, ) R. Ellis
} §. Gadzala
Plaintiffs, )
)
Yo ) No. 93-C-0325
}
FISHER CONTRCLS INTERNATIONAL, ) Judge Reynolds
INC., a Delaware corporation, )
)
Defendant. }
P , E TO PE FOR IN JRY APPEAL

The plaintiffs, Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman Industries, Inc. and Theresa A.
Slyman (collectively "plaintiffs*), by their attorneys, state as follows:

1. Following the Court's *Decision Foﬂowiﬁg Court Trial" dated September 12, 1996
(the "Order"), Defendant Fisher Controls, Inc. ("Fisher") petitioned the Court to certify the
Order for interlocutory appeal pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1292(b). The Court has scheduled a
telephonic status conference on Ocober 18, 1996.

2, Fisher's petition contains an argument on the merits of the issue which the Court

decided in the Order. Plaintiffs dispute Fisher's arguments and believe that the Order should be
affirmed. | |

3. However, Piamuffs do not oppose Fisher's pentmn for an interlocutory appeal.
Plaintiffs agree that, for purposes of 28 U.S.C. §1292(b), the Order "involves a controlling

question of law and that an immediate appeal from the Order may materially advance the ultimate

termination of the litigation.”




3. Further, because the issue is a question of law which has been fully briefed in the

District Court, plaintiffs submit that (pending complétion of the transcript of the October 25 and
26, 1995 trial proceedings), the proposed interlocutory appeal should be expedited to the extent
practicable and permissible to the United States Court of Appeals for the Sevénﬂl Circuit.

4.  Plaintiffs further request that in the event the interlocutory appeal is approved, this
Court should not stay the remaining trial court proceedings pending the completion of the
interlocutory appeal. |

Respectfully submitted,

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC.
and THERESA A. SLYMAN

L.

One of Their Attorrieys

Carmen D, Caruso
FORAN & SCHULTZ
30 North LaSalle Street
Suite 3000

Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 368-8330

Laurie McElroy )

WHYTE, HIRSCHBOECK
& DUDEK S.C.

111 East Wisconsin Avenue

‘Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

(414)273-2100

| 108R Nz g




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OFCOOK )

ER! ATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, being first duly sworn under oath, states that she caused a copy of the

PLAINTIFFS' RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR INTERLOCUTORY APPEAL to be served:

upon the following persons by facsimile transmission and by First Class Mail on
October 14, 1996.

Michael Ash, Esq, {414) 273-5198
James G. Schweitzer, Esqg.

GODFREY & KAHN, $.C.

780 North Water Street

Miiwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Andrew R. Running, Esq. A (312) 861-2200
Robert B. Ellis, Esq. '

KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, Hlinois 60601

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN io before
me on October 14, 1996.

7, : | f Madaline D. Kaaner =
Hililine T Jownn . Notay Publc, St of Mlincis

NOTARY PUBLIC § 2y Commlseion Exyires 1026573
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

: T. Bistli el
MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., ) & Davidson
a Wisconsin corporation, ) D. Moore
SLYMANINDUSTRIES, mC., a ) M. Sh_annun
Delaware corporation, and } M. Ash
THERESA A. SLYMAN, an ) J. Schink
individual resident of Ohio, ) R. Ellls
. ‘ ) 5. Gadzala
Plaintiffs, )
)
V. } Neo. 93-C-0325
)
FISHED COMTROLS INTERNATIONAL, } Judge Reyuoids
INC., a Delaware corporation, }
)
Defendant. }
QINT MOTION FOR REFERRAL GISTRATE GE FOR MEDIATION

_ The plaintiffs, Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman Indusiries, Inc. and Theresa A.
Slyman (collectively “plaintiffs™), and the defendant, ?ishcr Controls International, Inc.
("Fisher"), by their respective attorneys, jointly move f;ar'a referral of this case to a Magistrate
fudge for mediation of issues which remain in the case following the September 12, 1996

"Decision Following Court Trial.*

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. INC.

and THERESA A. SLYMAN
. ///

Ohe of Their Atforneys

By:

One of Their Attorneys

ey 2 2.1996




Carmen D, Caruso
FORAN & SCHULTZ
30 North LaSalle Street
Suite: 3000

Chicago,- llinois 60602
(312) 368-8330

Laurie McElroy

WHYTE, HIRSCHBOECK
& DUDEK S.C.

111 East Wisconsin Avenue

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

(414)273-2100

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
IRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, Nlinois 60601

(312) 861-2000

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, §.C
780 North Water Street.
Milwaikee, Wisconsin 53202

| (414) 273-3500

Attorneys For Defendant




STATE OF ILLINOIS 3

| ) SS.
COUNTY OFCOOK )

CERTIFICA'I‘E OF SERVICE

The undersigned, being first duly sworn under: oath, states that she caused a copy of the
JOINT MOTION FOR REFERRAL TO MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR MEDIAT{ON to be

served upon the following persons by facsimile transmission and by First- Class Mail on
October 14, 1996.

ae (414) 273-5198
J_ames G Schweltzer, Esqg.

GODFREY & KAHN, §.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Andrew R. Running, Esq. : (312) 861-2200
Robert B. Eliis, Esq. :

KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randoiph Drive
Chicago, Iilinois 60601

- "SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before
me on October 14, 1996,

NOTARY PUBLIC

oD, Kw;rlm 3
mrubhc,smof ois §
: l(ycu'nmission Expizes 10726174
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO,,

INC,,

}
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and )
THERESA A. SLYMAN );
)
Plaintiffs, }
)
V. ) No. 93-C-0325
' )
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, ) Judge Reynolds
)
)
)

Defendant.

FISHER'S PETITION TO CERTIFY
THE COURT’S SEPTEMBER 12, 1996 ORDER
FOR TORY APPEAL P TO 1293

For the reasons set forth in the ac.cdmpanying Memorandum In Support, defendant Fisher ‘
Controls International, Inc. hereby petitions the Court to certify for interlocutory appeal pursuant
10 28 U.S.C. § 1292(b) its September 12, 1996 Decision Following Court Trial.

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: September 20, 1996 ' /4 -/L*—' /M;

One of the Attorneys for Defendant
Fisher Controls International, Inc.

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, 8.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500




Robert B, Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago; Iltinois 60601
(312) 861-2000
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO,;
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and
THERESA A. SLYMAN

Plaintiffs,
No. 93-C-0325

V.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,

Judge Reynolds
INC,, .

Defendanf.

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT‘OF FISIIER’S PETITION

The Court’s September 12, 1996 Decision Following Court Trial holds as a matter of law
th'a_'t'any parent corporation that acquires the assets of another comﬁa.ny through a §368(a)(1XC)
reorganization must be deemed to be the corporate successor of that company, regardless of
whether the parent immediately transfers those assets to an independent subsidiary. Fisher
petitions tl.le Court to certify that decision for permissive interlocutory appeal pursuant to 28 |
U.IS.lC. §1292(b), because it “involves a controlling question of law as to wi-nich there is substantial
ground for difference of opinion and that an immediate appea! from the order may materially
advance tﬁe ultimate termination of the ﬁﬁgaﬁon ..

L  The Decision Involves A “Controlling Question Of Law”
The Court’s opiion éxpressly bases its liability finding on a legal determination arising

from undisputed facts concerning the 1975 transaction in which New Milwaukee Die Casting

Company acquired the assets of Old Milwaukee Die Casting, (Opinion at 3} The Court ruled as a




matter of law that Fisher's participation as an intermediary or conduit in that transaction was a
sufficient basis to hold that Fisher is the corporate successor to Old Milwaukee Die Casting. 'i.‘he
“controlling” nature of this ruling is exemplified by the fact that the Court consideréd it
unnecessary to make any further liability findings. An interlocutory appeal of this decision would
therefore clearly advance the ultimate resolution of the liability issues in this case.
IL  There Is Substantisl Ground For Difference Of Opinion As To The Decision

The Court’s opinion places ﬁnprecedented importance on the fact that the 1975
transaction was structured to-quali@ as a §368(a)(1)}(C) reorganization for tax purposes. There is
substantial ground for a difference of opinion as to the legal implications the Court ﬂndé to arise
from that tax election. Equally important, while the Court states in it opinion that “equity
decides t.he case,” no reason is given why imposing successor liability on Fisher is necessary to
preVént any inequity.

A.  The Tax Code provides no basis for any finding of lisbility against Fisher.

There is no dispute that Fisher’s momentary possession of Old Milwankee Die Casting’s
assets prior to their transfer to New Milwaukee Die Casting is an insufficient basis for liability.
The Court recognized in its June 23, 1995 summary judgment decision that “CERCLA does not
extend so far as to impose liability on those who have merely taken brief record title to a facnhty
as a conduit in an acquisition.” (Summary-]udglheht Opinion at 14) The Court's S_eptembér 12,

1996 trial ruling is therefore predicated not on the mere fact of Fisher's involvement as a conduit
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in the 1975 transaction, but rather on the tax implications it reads into that transaction. The
Court's decision is the first to base a finding of successor liability solely on that basis.

In ruling that the tax aspects of the 1975 transaction are alone sufficient to support a
finding of successor liability against Fisher, the Court reads unprecedented CERCLA implications
into the tax aspects of the transaction, For example, the Court deems two Internal Revenue
Service re‘gxilati'ons applicable to §368(a){1)(C) transactions to create a “binding admission that
the purchaser intends to continue the business enterprise.” (Opinién at 9) But at a minimum, the
two i_regulations relied upon by the Court are subject to different interprétations.

The first IRS regulation relied upon by the Court provides: “A corporation remains &
party to the reorganization although it transfers all or part of the .assets acquired to a controlied
subsidiary.” (26 C.F.R. § 1-368-2(f); cited by Court at fn. 5, p. 8) The Court reads this
regulation to mean that “Fisher cannot avoid the fact that it was the asset-acquiring party'in & §
368(a)(1)(C) reorganization.” (Opinion at 8) But Fisher has never denied that it acquired Old
Milwaukee Die Casting Company’s a_;';sets. The issue is whether any CERCLA ligbility should be
imposed based upon Fisher’s momentary role as an “asset-acquiring” conduit. And a closer
reading of §1-368-2(f) makes it clear that being “a party to the reorganization” for tax purposes
cannot be sufficient to impose CERCLA Liability, o;* otherwise any time the stock of a parent

company was used by a subsidiary in a §368(a)(1XC) reOrganization the parent would be held

*  The CERCLA case on which the Court principally relies, Mmm,&_ﬂu
Bedford Harbor Proceedings, 712 F. Supp. 1010, 1018 (D: Mass. 1989), is distinguishable
‘because successor liability in that case was meosed on the subsidiary that actually continued the
busitiess, niot on its parent: (The parent, RTE, did not participate as a conduit in the acquisition.)
Fisher has never disputed that the common law factors relied upon by the court in Acushnet
would support a finding that New Milwaukee Die Casting Company is the successor to Old
Mitwaukee Die Casting.

-3-




very next sentence after the second sentence of §1-368-2(f) quoted by the Court, the IRS

provides another example to show how broad the term “party to a reorganization” is:

(ff  Theterm “apartyioa reorganization" includes a corporation resulting
from a reorganization, and both corporations in a transaction qualifying as a
reorgamzatlon where one oorporanon acquires stock or propemes of another
corporation. A corporation remains a party to the reorganization although it
transfers al! or pan ofthe assets acquued toa contrulled subsid:ary mmgm_m__

Id., emphasis added. Applying the Court’s reasoning, Fisher would have been “a party to the
reorganization” and hence a CERCLA liable party even if New Milwaukee Die Casting had
acquired Old Milwaukee Die Casting’s assets in a direct transaction using Fisher's stock. Yet
even the Acushnet opinion relied upon by the Court holds that Fisher would have no such liability
inra direct transaction: “Acquiring Believille through & wholly-owned subsidizry way an effective
way for RTE {the parent] to protect itself from liability.” 712 F. Supp. at 1017 (emphasis added).
In sum, this Court cast too wide a net when it imposed CERCLA liability on Fisher merely
because it was “a party to the reorganization.” ‘

The Court relies upon a second IRS regulation to hold that “{rJeorganizing under § 368(a)
is, in effect, a binding admission that the purchaser intends to continue the business enterprise.”
(Opinion at 9) That regulation provides in relevant part: “Transactions qualifying for tax free
treatment under §368(a) . . . must provide fora MM" (26 CER.
.§1.368-1(c); quoted by the Coust at fn. 6, p. 9; emphasls added by the Court.) This regulation
precluded Fisher from immediately selling Old Milwaukee Die Casting’s assets to an unrelated

third party. But there is no requirement that “the purchaser” continue the business directly, as the

4.




. Court’s opinion suggests. To the contrary, 26 U.S.C. § 368(a)(2XC) expressly authorizes the

immediate transfer of “all or part of the assets acquired” to a.whouy-oWﬂed subsidiiary such as

- New Milwaukee Die Casting Company. (So does 26 CFR.§ 1-368-2(f), the first IRS regulation
quoted by the Court.) Having made that immediate transfer, Fisher contends that its role as a
mere conduit in the 1975 transaction is insufficient as a matter of law to impose successor of

.CERCLA lisbility. See e.g. cases cited at p. 15 of the Court’s June 23, 1995 Summary Judgment

Decision, including Jo Co., 992 F. 24 401, 407 0.5 (1st Cir, 1993)
(“this intermediate transaction does not alter any habnhty in this case by statute, contract or any
other norm. . . ."). New Milwaukee Die Casting Company may well be the corporate successor
to Old Milwaukee Die Casting Company, but Fis-her is not.

B. Equity is satisfied by recognizing New Milwaukee Die Castmg Company as

the successor to Old Milwauket Die Casting Company.

There are therefore substantial grounds for a difference of opinion as fo whether any
“binding admissions” should be read into the IRS regulations cited by the Court. But if “equity
decides the case” (Opinion at 2), then thete are also substantial grounds for concluding that the
equitable interests of third-party creditors of Old Milwaukee Die Casting Company would be fully
satisfied by recognizing New Milwaukeé Die Casting as its mécessor; At the time the stock of
New Milwaukee Die Casting Company was sold to the Stymans, the company’s balance sheet and
physical plant were vastly improved over that of Old Milwaukee Die Casting Company, as the
Court found in its June 23, 1995 Summary Judgment Decision:

However, new MDCC formally 1 mmntmned a separate corporate existence, and
remamed adequateiy capltahzed asa gomg, mdependentiy vnable Busmess In fact,




Summary Judgment Decision at 4 (emphasis added). Given these undisputed facts, there is no
basis in equity to reach to Fisher Controls to satisfy Old Milwaﬁkee Die Casting's liabilities. If
New Milwaukee Die Casting is now unable to satisfy its predecessor’s obligations, the fault does

not lie with Fisher,

OL  AnImmedizste Appeal Would Materially Advance The Ultimate Termination Of
The Litigation And Would Not Delay The Allocation Phase Of The Case.

Certifying the September 12, 1996 Decision for interlocutory appeal would clearly
advance the ultimate resolution of this litigation and minimize ihe burdens on the courts and the
parties. [fthe de;:ision were reversed, the case would be over and the parties and the court would
be spared the costs of discovery and trial of the allocation and cost recovery issues in this case. If
the decision were affirmed, the parties’ dispute over liabilty issues would be resoived and the
praspects for an overall seftlement of the case would be substantially increased.

An interlocutory appeal would probably not delay any required allocation trial. The
plaintiffs’ site investigation and remedial planning is still at such an early stage that it is unlikely
that a remedial plan will be submitted to and approved by the Wisconsin DNR within the time
required to complete the appeal. According to the plaintiffs’ counsel, little or no progress has
been made on the site investigation, remedial planning or on the regulatory review process since
the October 1995 libility trial. Until the need for remedial action is demonstrated and a remedial
plan is approved by the Wisconsin DNR, it would be premature for the parties to attempt to

prepare for a trial on the equitable allocation of the ultimate CERCLA response costs.




CONCLUSION .
For the foregoing reasons, deferidant Fisher Controls International, Inc. petitions this

Court to certify the September 12, 1996 liability decision for interlocutory éppeal pursuant to 28

US.C. § 1292(b).

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: September 20, 1996 %/(—w //5

.One of the Attomeys for Defendant
Fisher Controls International, Inc.

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, S.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
| . . (414) 273-3500

Andrew R. Running
Rabert B, Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chlcago Nlinois 60601
(312) 861-2000
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT =
FOR THE FASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC., and
THERESA A. SLYMAN,

Plaintiffs,
v. Civil Action No. 93-C-0325

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL
INC.,

Defendant.

DECISION FOLLOWING COURT TRIAL

BACKGROUND
The court held a bench trial on October 25 and 26, 1995, to determnine
whether Fisher Controls International, Inc. ("Fisher") shared in liability with its formerly
owned subsidiary for releasing environmentally hazardous materials. The court holds
that Fisher is liable as a successor of Milwaukee Die Casting Company.
Milwaukee Die Casting Compaﬁ;r operated a die casting plant at the same
location until 1975. Then Fisher acquired the opératio"m through a transaction called a
triangular merger. A triangular mérger__ involves three parties: the parent company, is
wholly-owned subsidiary, and the tafget company. Under LR.C. § 368(a)(1){(c), this is &

tax-free transaction. Fisher, the parent company, wanted to acquire the "old" Milwaukee

1
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Die Casting Company ("Old MDCC"), the target company, so it incorporated a "new"
Milwaukee Die Casting Company ("New MDCC"), the subsidiary. Then in a series of
transactions, Fisher 1) acquired all of New MDCC's stock; 2) acquired virtually all of
Old MDCC's assets and liabilities in exchange for stack of Fisher’s parent company; and
3) tr‘ans_ferred.: those assets and Liabilities to New MDCC.

The property on which MbCC (both Old and New) has conducted its
ope.rations is contaminated with hazardous waste materials in \}iolation of the

Compreliensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as

‘amended ("CERCLA"), 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.' New MDCC does not deny liability

but seeks contribution from Fisher for any liability arising before or during Fisher’s

ownership. In a June 23, 1995 order, the court narrowed the scope of the trial to three

issues: 1) whether Fisher is liable as successor of Old MDCC; or 2) whether Fisher is

liable 2s an "owner" under CERCLA; and.3) whether Fisher had actual control of the

operation and is thus liable as an "operator" under CERCLA.
Although the case involves complicated legal theories, sophisticated corporate
transactions, and two dense and sometimes confusing federal statutory schemes (the

Internal Revenue Code an_d CERCLA),. in the end equity decides thé case.

‘Polychlorinated biphenyl ("PCB") was released on the property.

2




FINDINGS 6F FACT

Prior to trial, the parties stipulated that the trial would be limited to the
already existing summary judgment record. The parties did not introduce any new facts
or evidence at trial. The court heard no testimony. As noted in the court’s June 23,
1995 order, the parties agree on the facts but disagree about the factual inferences and
legal conclusions to be drawn from those facts. For these reasons, the court adopts the |
findings of fact from the June 23, 1995 order.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

As noted above, the trial was limited to three separate theories of liability.
The court need only discuss the first theory, because it holds that Fisher is liable as a
successor of Old MDCC because the transaction whereby Fisher acquired the die casting
operations resulted in a de facto merger. While, at first glance, this case appeared as if
it would be a detailed analysis of particular factual issues and infere_nccs drawn from

them, it actually involves a legal issue about the liability that attaches in corporate
reorganizations.

Generally, a corporation can purchase anothef corporation’s assets and not
incur any of the seller’s liabilities. Where it is not just an asset purchase, but is a
statutory merger, the remaining corporation.incurs "successor liability" for the

obligations of its predecessors. In addition to a statutory merger, there are other ways

for successor liability to attach to a corporation which purchases the assets of another.

AD 72A
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For example, a de facto merger exists where the transaction is a merger in substance Eut
does not technically constitute a -st,amtcry merger. Leannais v. Cincinnati, Inc., 565
F.2d 4317, 439 (7th Cir. 1977). Successor ccrporations may be held liable for cleanup
costs under CERCLA. In Re Acushnet River & New Bedford Harbor Proceedings Re
Allegted PCB. Pollution, 712 F. Supp. 1010 (D. Mass. 1989).

The de facto merger doctrine is equitable in nature; the court must look to the
substance of the transaction to de;ennine whether a merger has occ_:urred. Id. at 1015.

The parties disagree about whether state law or federal common law applies to this case.?

.However, the disagreement is not relevant; both the Seventh Circuit and the Wisconsin

Supreme Court have adopted the same four elements for a de fucto merger. See Travis v.

Harris Corp., 565 F.2d 443, 447 (7th Cir. 1977); Fish v. Amsted Indus.. Inc., 126 Wis.

2d 293, 376 N.W.2d 820 (Wis. 1985). A de facto merger occurs in a transaction when:
1.) there is a continuity of the acquired business; 2) the shareholders of the target
company become a "constituent part" of the purchasing company by transferring the

target company’s assets to the 'purchasing company for stock in the purchasing company

‘ot its parent;® 3) the seller ceases operations as soon as possible; and 4) the purchaser

_ *Successor liability is determined by federal common law. Hunt's Generator Comm. V.
Babcock & Wildox Co., 863 F. Supp. 879, 8382 (E.D. Wis. 1994.) However, federal common-
law standards of successor liability are usually embodied in the state law standards. See
Louisiana-Pac, Corp. v: Asarco, Inc., 909 F.2d 1260, 1263 (9th Cir. 1990).

*The stock transferred can be that of the acquiring corporation or its parent. Louisiana-.
Pac., 909 F.2d at 1265 n.6, citing Acushnet, 712 F. Supp. at 1016-1017.

4
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pssumes all obligations neceséary for the continuation of business operations. Id.
Plaintiffs contend that the three-party transaction between Fisher, New MDCC, and Old
MDCC was a de facto merger. The court agrees.

The parties only disagree on the first element; the last three are clearly
satisfied. The s@nd element, continuity of shareholders, involves whether cash or
stock is given in exchange for the target company’s assets. Travis, 565 F.2d at 447,
Fish, 126 Wis. 2d at 293. This is the key element in Wisconsin and in the Seventh
ICircuit; if .thcre is no stock transfer, there is no de facto merger. Id. The importance

pf exchanging stock and not cash is that the shareholders of the acquired company

aintain an interest in the acquired assets. Here, Fisher exchanged the stock of its

arent for the assets of Old MDCC, thus satisfying the continnity of shareholders

element.

Eight days later, the third element, ceasing operations as soon as possible, was

satisfied when Old MDCC ceased its operations and dissolved. Finally, the fourth
plement was satisfied when, in exchange for the stock of its parent, Fisher acquired all
[he assets and liabilities of Old MDCC necessary to continue business operations. The

court is left with the issue of whether the disputed element, continuity of the business

enterprise, has been satisfied.

‘Typically, where parties argue over the "continuity of business" element, the

inquiry is a factual one, examining whether there was continuity of management,
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personnel, physical location, assets and general business operations. Acushnet, 712 F.

Supp. at 1015. Here, the business of Old MDCC was continued. This is not in dispute
and was, in fact, the parties’ intention, The same operations occurred at the 'samé.
facility, with the same employees, the same management, and the same assets.
Additionally, the entity maintained the same name (Milwau_kee Die Casting C'ompany)
and manufacmr;:d the same product, Fisher intended that "the operation of the company
remain strongly in the hands of the people who had really been responsible for it
before," (Fisher memo at 5 § 8.) That the business was continued is not in dispute.
The parties’ disagreement is one of law and semantics.

Plaintiffs argue that Fisher continued the business of Old MDCC. Fisher
responds that, while ‘thc business of Old MDCC may have been continued, Fisher was
not the entity that continued it. Plaintiffs reply that Fisher continued the business of Old
MDCC through Fisher's subsidiary, New MDCC. The court examines how the law
turns on these facts. |

The court first notes that the existence of a parent-subsidiary relationship, by
itself, is not sufficient to create parent liability under CERCLA. Joslyn Mfg. Co. V.
T.L. James & Co., 893 F.2d 80, 82 (5th Cir. 1990), cert. denied, 495-'U.ST 1108
(1991). Therefore, there must be something more than just a parent-subsidiary

relationship. Here, the something inore is the triangular merger or, more appropriately,
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the triangular reorganization that occcurred. A triangular reorganization is both a
corporate acquisition technique and a tax convention that reduces taxes to the parties.
Parent companies can be found liable as successors to wholly-owned
subsidjaries. Sedbrook v. Zimnierman Design Group Lid., 190 Wis. 2d 14, 23, 526
N.W.2d 758, 761 (Ct. App. 1994), review denied, 531 N.W.2d 326 (1995). In
Sedbrook, a parent purchased the assets of the target corporation and then ran the
business through its wholly-owned subsidiary. The court performed the four-factor
analysis and concluded that a de facto merger had occurred. Id. It is significant that in
this case, the court did not Jook to corporate-veil piercing principles which defendant
suggests ié required by law. |

Additionally, and perhaps more important is how the Internal ﬁevenue Code
(the "Code") treats the triangular reorganization and the parties’ intentions with regard to
the Code. The Code treats certain corporate transactions — “reorganizations” — as tax-
free. LR.C. § 368(a) defines which types of transactions are reorganizations.  Fisher
and Old MDCC structured this deal to qualify for tax-free treatment under |
§ 368(a)(1)(C). | ﬁnder § 368 (a)(1)(C), a tax-free reorga{ﬁiation takes place where one
gorgoration exchanges stock in itself or its parent for substantially all the assets of the

targét company.* A mere cash purchase of assets will not qualify, 26 CF.R. § 1-

LT

*A § 368(a)(1)(C) reorganization is "the acquisition by one corporation, in exchange solely
for all or a part of its voting stock (or in exchange solely for all or a part of the voting stock of
' (continued...)
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368-2(a). These are the same requirements necessary for the second element of a de

Jacto merger—a continuity of shareholders manifested by a stock-for-asset transfer.
Perhaps more significant is that, under § 368(2)(1)(c), even where an

acquiring corporation transfers all or part of the assets acquired to a contrd_lled

- subsidiary, the Code considers that corporation to remain a party to the reorganization.

26 C.F.R. § 1-368-2(f). That is what occurred here. Fisher acquired substantially all
of Old MDCC’s assets in order to effect a reorganization un‘der>§ 368(a)(1)(C). It then
transferred those assets to New MDCC.- Even though it transferred the assets to its
controfled subsidiary, the Code still treats Fisher as a party to the transaction.- Fisher
cannot avoid the fact that it was the asset-acquiring party in a § 368(a)(1)(C)
reorganization. As one court noted, "[tlhe C reorganization subsection [§ 368(a}(1XC)]
evolved as a "practical merger” alternative and was designed to permit corporate

combinations which did not meet the applicable state requirements for a merger or

consolidation." American Potash & Chem. Corp. v. United States, 399 F.2d 194, 201
(Ct. Cl. 1968).
Fisher argues that its participation as a “trhnsac;ional conduit” does not result

in a finding that it continued :‘the business of Old MDCC. However, it cannot escape the

(...continued) i

a corporation which is in control of the acquiring corporation), of substantially all properties of
another corporation.”

"A corporation remains a party to the reorganization although it transfers all or part of the
assets acquired tfo a controlled subsidiary." 26 C.F.R. § 1-368-2(f).

8
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form or the substance of the transaction. The form chosen was a reorganization under
§ 368(a)(1)(C). The substance of the transaction was a de facto merger. Fisher cannot
have the cake of tax-free reorganization and deny the substance of the de facto merger.
Reorganizing undér § 368(a) is, in effect, a binding admission that the purchaser intends
to continue the business enterprise. |
For the above reasons, the court holds that a de facro merger occurred and
Fisher is a successor to Old MDCC.

CONCLUSION
Fisher Controls International, Inc., is a successor corporation to Milwaukee
Die Casting Co. Theref.ore, Fisher Controls International, Inc., has contributory liability

for Milwaukee Die Casting Co.'s CERCLA violations.

Transactions qualifying for tax free treatment under § 368(a) "must be an ordinary and
necessary incident of the conduct of the enterprise and must provide for a continuation of the
enterprise. A scheme, which involves an abrupt departure from normal reorganization . .
procedure in connection with a transaction on which the imposition of tax is imminent, such as
a mere device that puts on the form of a corporate reorganization as a disguise for concealing
its real character, and the object and accomplishment of which is the consummation of a
preconceived plan having no business or corporate purpose, is not a plan of reorganization." 26
C.F.R. § 1.368-1{c) {(emphasis added). '
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Pursuant to the April 21, 1995 stipulation between the parties, the issue of
damages is still pending. The court wﬁl conduct a telephonic scheduling conference on
Friday., September 20, 1996, at 10:00 a.m., for the purpose of setting a trial date on the
damages issue, The court will initiate the call.,

SO ORDERED this _ /2 day of September, 1996.

John W. Reyno(las
Umted States District Judge

10
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OVERVIEW:

Plaintiffs seék to impose CERCLA liability on Fisher based
on three theories:

1. Fisher's purchase of Old MDCC's assets on
January 14, 1975 was a "de facto merger."

But Fisher did not "continue' the business of
Old MDCC. New MDCC acquired Old
MDCC’s assets from Fisher immediately upon
the closing of the Old MDCC/Fisher

transaction. If there was any de facto merger,

it was between Old and New MDCC.

" The Court correctiy observed in its June 23rd

summary Judgment declsmn that:.

The de facto merger concept “is a judicially
created vehicle that courts sometimes use to
treat an assets acqmsntlon as if it were a
merger . ... In large measure, application
depends on how a court views both the facts
and the equities of an individual situation.”
(Opinion at 17, citation omitted)

But there would be no equitable basis for any
de facto merger finding because no assets were
stripped from the business in either step of the
January 14, 1975 transaction.




In conceding the facts and the equities do not
support piercing the corporate veil between
Fisher and New MDCC, Plaintiffs have also
essentially conceded there is no equitable
justification for finding a de fucfo merger.
Both are common-law equitable doctrines. .
Both depend on the same balancmg of the
equities. Both recognize the fundamental
importance of maintaining the limited lability
of corporate shareholders:

“‘By legal fiction the corporatmn is a separate
entity and is treated as such under all ordinary
circumstances.” That the ‘legal fiction’ ofa

~ corporation is not one to be lightly

dlsregarded remains the law in Wisconsin as
well as in ‘most other jurlsdlctlons . “This
mcentwe to business investment has been
called the most lmportant legal development of

_ | v, Olse; 142WIS 2d
465, 474, 419 N W 2d 211, 213-14 (Wis. 1988).

The Court's June 23, 1995 Opinion denied

‘summary judgment to Fisher on this issue

because of the dispute of fact over whether
Fisher "continued" the business as the
CERCLA "operator" of the plant. (Opinion
at 18) But unless the Court agrees with the
Sixth Circuit that CERCLA operator

3
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standard Veil-piercing standard, more
relaxed CERCLA standards should not be
substltuted for the cammon law standards for
abuse of the corporate form.
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2.
property because it held title to that property for an instant
on January 14, 1975, and for the two-mionth period from
December 24, 1981 until February 23, 1982,

v
T TN R T I

Fisher was the CERCLA "owner" of the MDCC

But the Court recognized in its June 23rd Opinion
that "CERCLA does not extend so far as to impose
liability on those who have merely taken brief
record title to a faclhty as a conduit in an

“acquisition." (Opinion at 14, citing John S. Boyd

and Robertshaw Controls cases)

The Court demed Fisher summary judgment on
the CERCLA ownersh:p issue solely because of the
outstanding CERCLA operator issues. (Opm:on at
15) But there is no dispute that Fisher held its
nershi '::m__:‘j';r sts for the two brief periods in
question solely to facilitate the Schroeder and

Slyman transactions, and not for any other
purpose.

For example, Fisher didn't use its title to exert
any control over the plant, or to acquire a
security interest for any debts. In assuming
title, it was acting merely as a conduit.

As for the more signiﬁ_cﬁant 1981-82 period, the
plaintiffs have never disputed that Fisher assumed
title solely to accommodate the Slymans tax
objectives.
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3. CERCLA Operator theory of liability.

® The relevant facts are not really in dispute, only the
_ inferences to be drawn from those facts.

® Since this issue caused the Court to refrain from
ruling on the other two theories, it makes sense to
start here.

@ But before moving directly to that issue, brief
mention should be made of a theory of liability
even the plaintiffs concede cannot be asserted
against Fisher:

I.  Plaintiffs concede they have no veil-piercing claim

A. T-part test for veil-piercing under both Wis. and
Federal common law:

1.
2.

w

AR o

Inadequate Capitalization |
Extensive or Pervasive Control By Parent over
the Subsidiary

Intermingling of the Subsidiary's Properties
or Accounts with those of the Parent

Failure to Observe Corporate Formalities
Siphoning of Funds from the Subsidiary
Absence.of Corporate Records

Nonfunctioning Officers or Directors




l)
'

 Corp., 724 F. Supp. 15, 20
(D R. I 1989), afﬁrmgd, 910F 2d 24 (lst Cir.
1990).

. Plaintiffs have conceded they have no piercing
case: "..the plamtlffs have correctly declined to
argue that this court should pierce the corporate
veil under these clrcumstances " (June 23, 1995
Oplmon at 16)




IL.

The Sixth Circuit Recently Ruled That A Parent Corp.
is not a CERCLA "Operator" Absent Evidence
Sufficient To Pierce the Corporate Veil

,59F. 3d 584

(6th Clr 1995)

A.

“The Sixth Circuit Observed that "the drafters of
the statute distinguished an operator from a person
who 'otherwise controlled' a faclhty M

"The term 'owner or operator means. . . (i) in the case

.ot an onshore facility or an offshore facxllty any

\ & and (iii) in
the case of : any facﬂlty, title or control of which was
conveyed due to bankruptcy, foreclosure, tax
delinquency, abandonment, or similar means to a unity
of State or local govemment any person who owned,
operated, -

facility 1mrned1ately beforehand."

This statutory definition thus makes clear that
anyone who controls activities at the facility is not
necessarily an "operator."
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B. The Sixth Circuit ruled that parental oversight
cons:stent with traditional corporate law should
not give rise to CERCLA liability:

"[W]hen a parent corporation actively partlc:pates‘
in the affairs of its subsndiary nsnst'f |
restrictions imposed by tradition pors -
nothing in the defi mtlon jllSt cited or in the rest of
the statute indicates that the parent has assumed
the role of opérator." 59 F. 3d at 590.

The alternative approach replaces "the relatively
bright line provided by the doctrine of piercing the
corporate veil... with a nebulous 'control’ test:"

""When, precisely, is a parent acting in a
manner consistent with its investment
relatmnshlp as opposed to a manner that
triggers operator hablllty" The indica
enumerated by the district court, such as
partlclpatmn in the subsndlary s board of
directors and involvement in specific pohcy
decisions, offer little guidance. Certainly,
these activities are not grounds traditionally
relied upon to pierce the corporate veil.'" 59F.
3d at 590.

C. The following ties between parent and subsidiary

were therefore found "to be inadequate to establish
CERCLA operator liability:

9




100% st_o_c_k_ ownership

Parent's participation on Sub's Board of
Directors

Ma cross-pollmatlon uf officers wg_

ion "[MDCC'S Flsher officers were not
involved in decision-making or daily
operations}

"active participation by [parent's] officials in
environmental matters"

"financial control of [subsidiary] through
approval of budgets and capital expendltures"

59 F. 3d at 591.

10




III.  Fisher did not "operate" MDCC even under the more

nebulous "actual & pervasive control" test rejected by
the Sixth Circuit

A.

Even under the "pervasive control" test, extending
CERCLA operator hablllty to parents of wholly-
owned subsidiaries is justified only in exceptional
cases:

"CERCLA does not define 'owners' or
'operators’ as mcludmg the parent company of
offending wholly—owned subsidiaries. Nor
does the leglslatwe hlstory mdlcate that
basic tenet of corporatlon law." ,lgs_lm_l\_llfgl
0., Ing 893 F. 2d 80, 82

g}ﬂggrshlp. At a minimum it requlres active
involvement in the actnvities of the
subsidiary." - ayser-Roth Corp., 910

F.2d 24,27 (1st Cir. 1990)

11




"Pervasive Control'' Required

The First Circuit in Kayser described the
degree of active mvulvement required as

"pervaswe control." 910 F. 2d at 27 n. 8.

"Actual," ""Pervasive” & "Daily” Control
Required

The Eleventh Circuit recently articulated the
degree of involvement required as follows:

"[A] parent corporatmn may be held liable as
an operator of its subsudlary s busmess 0nly
when 1t exercis tual

Cir. 1993).

12




B. Fisher Did Not "Operate" New MDCC/January
14, 1975 - June 1981

1. Undisputed Facts:

a. MDCC was financially self-sufficient

(1) Retired $186,000 in old debt

(2) Invested $1,868,000 in new
equipment and other capital from its
own funds (Boyd Dep. at 16-17, 40

77-78; DX-55)

3) Increased its cash reserves by $2.3
million

(4) Was debt-free after 1979
(DX-55 as to (1)-(4) above)

(5) Paid its own bills and collected its
own accounts receivable (Boyd Dep.
at 31, 35; Kruse Dep. at 61)

(6) Paid its employee salaries directly
(Boyd Dep at 71-72; Kruse Dep. at
61)

(7) Maintained its own pension plan
(Suess Dep. at 91) |

13




b. New MDCC was inﬂependently managed

(1) Plant was run by John Wheeler until

his death.

(a) As the Court quoted from the
deposmon of Wheeler's contact
at Fisher, James Boyd:

"Buyd explamed that Wheeler
contacted him when there was an
1mp0rtant issue to be resolved or
some report on a specific
accomphshment such as achievement
of budget or achievement of sales."
Other than that, 'Mr Whee]er ygag

by me, as pres:dent, and by the
board of dll‘ECtﬁrS, who were Fisher

ofﬁcers, Qﬂ_‘ﬂn_thelel‘lbm.a_d

ration." (Boyd Dep. at 51; June
23rd Oplmon at 6)

(b) Larry Kruse supervised MDCC
after Boyd was transferred to St.

Louis. Kruse also confirmed
that:

14




)

€)

(4)

5)

"Milwaukee Die, on a day-by-day
situation, pretty much operated
autonomously of Fisher Controls, but
as all corporations require, it had to
have someplace to report into, so I
was asmgned the responsibility."
(Kruse Dep. at 14; June 23rd
Opinion at 6)

New MDCC prepared its own
budgets : and forecasts (Boyd Dep. at
31, 35; Kruse Dep. at 61)

.Contact between Fisher and New

MDCC consisted primarily of
monthly financial reports (Kruse

Dep. at 64-65)

MDCC determined its own product
prices; nor did it grant Fisher any
preferentlal treatment as a customer
(Boyd Dep at 35-36; Kruse Dep. at
55, 61; Suess Dep. at 259)

Fisher knew it was in a different
business and didn't have the
expertise to run the MDCC plant on
a day-to-day basis, and did not
attempt to do so. (Boyd Dep. at 75-
76, 78)
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"[W]e seek more than just indicia of a parent-
subsndiary relationship. . . . It is partkcularly
lmportant that the record contain such
evndence n a case such as this, where the
parent company . is in an entirely. different
business that that of the subsidiary. Certain
isolated bits of ev:dence in this record may
have greater meaning | if attributed to a parent
engaged in a similar endeavor such that a
greater. level of direct involvement and control
by the parent cou]d be presumed."

Jackso) Auth, v. Bernuth Corp.,
996 F. 2d 1107, 1111 (11th Cir. 1993).

186




C.

New MDCC Managed Its Own’

Q Dld you ever assert control over any
envnronmental decisions at the plant?
A. No. (Dep. at 78)

(1) Permitting & Inspections Handled by
Suess (MDCC‘S Plant Engineer) or
Donohue (a local consultant hired by
Suess) (Suess Dep. at 306)

(2) PCB Cleanup Managed by Suess
(a) Wheeler assigned him job in
April 1980 (Dep. at 100)

(b) Educated on PCB Cleanup
Regu]atmns at DNR Public
Meeting in 1979 (Dep. at 98-100)

(¢) Dr. Craddock at Monsanto only
gave Suess copy of EPA's May
31, 1979 Regs (Dep. at 104, 262)

(d) Suess testified that Craddock
didn't tell him anything he did
not already know (Dep. at 104,
262, 263-65)

17




(e)

()

(g

(h)

Suess personally called EPA in
Washington to learn PCB
storage procedures (Dep. at 108-
109) ~

Suess personally devised
MDCC's cleanup forms and
procedures (Dep. at 105-106,
122) |

Suess personally set 10 ppm
cleanup goal (Dep. at 145-47)

Suess personally arranged for

confirmatory PCB sampling
(Dep. at 105-06, 122; MDC 185)

18




2. January 1975 - June 1981 Fisher Contacts
Cited By Plaintiffs

a. Fisher Oversight of Capital Spending

)

@)

Threshold high enough that danly
operatlons not impacted (Kruse Dep.
at 63; Boyd Dep. at 16-17)

| Fisher's Authority May Never Have

Been Reached

. :Dld you ever have occasion, during

the time that you were the director of
the Flsher service companies, to
review or receive capital expenditure
requests from Milwaukee Die
Casting?

To the hest of my knowledge, we
- had one (Kruse

Dep at 63)

Fisher Never Denied Any Capital
Spending Requests Made By
Wheeler (Kruse Dep. at 63; Boyd
Dep. at 78) (Rogers Made None In -
His Caretaker Role)

19




(a) Relevant Issue Mls_e_

(b) Undisputed Answer: NO.

() Mere Overmght and Unutilized
Authority to Control Cannot Be
Sufficient, or Every Parent Will
Be Deemed A CERCLA
Operator.

20




b. Fisher's Supervnsmn of Non-PCB
Occupatlonal Safety Matters

(1) M‘a_chine Guard Incident

(a)

(b)

@

Wheeler received a critical note
from Fisher about his failure to
install Machine Guards (Suess
Dep. at 292-93)

Fisher's criticism prompted by
an insurance inspection (Id.)

Episode indicative of general but
not pervasnve oversight, and of
sporadic rather than "daily"
Fisher contacts

Fisher's concern about
Wheeler's depriving MDCC's
workers of Machine Guards
requlred by OSHA ﬂa_s_g_g_r_‘tal__nly
‘with an "i 131

i) Distinction Made By Third
Circuit Between "Investor
~ Oversight" and "Actual
Control:

21




"Whereas a corporation's 'mere
overSLght' of the subsidiary... in a
'manner approprlate and consistent with
the investment relationship' does not
ordinarily result in operator liability, a
corporation's 'actual participation and
control' over the other corporation's
demsmn-—makmg does." Lansford-
Coaldale Joint r Auth. v. Tonolli
Corp., 4 F. 3d 1209 (3d Cir. 1993).

ii) Had Fisher turned a blind

eye to Wheeler's excessive
. frugality on worker safety

matters, it might have
exposed MDCC to OSHA
fines, personal injury
liability and to punitive
damages

iii) A District Court in
Michigan ruled earlier this
year that a lender’s

- performance of
environmental
Surveys;

- removal of USTs;

22
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- reporting of releases to
the Michigan DNR;
and,

- requirement that the
debtor “comply with
all applicable
environmental laws
and regulations”

did not constitute a basis
~ for imposing CERCLA
operator liability:

‘The court determines that the

Bank’s requiring plaintiff to
abide by all applicable
environmental laws does not
constitute “operation” of the
Property. Nor does the Bank’s
request for environmental
investigation of possible
contamination to the Property
securing its interest constitute
the requisite involvement
necessary to incur operator
liability. The record reflects
that the Bank took prudent and
routine steps to protect its
security interest only, and the

23




®

court will not punish the Bank

 for its insistence that plaintiff

obey the law. Z&7 1 easing v,

Graying Reel, Inc., 873 F.Supp.
51, 55 (E.D. Mich. 1995).

Fisher didn't take control of
OSHA Safety Matters even after
discovering Wheeler's lapse of
judgment

Wheeler, NOT Fisher, made the
decision to transfer
responsibility from himself to
Suess (not to Fisher). (1d.)

24
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(2) Annual Moﬂsanm "Safety and
~ Property Protection Survey"

SPP Annual Surveys. began in
1978, with recommendation that
MDCC form an Executive
Safety Committee (p. 4)

Recommendations relate to
machine guards, fire hazards,
accident investigation

~ procedures, and housekeepmg

But €3 of the July 23, 1980 cover
memo makes it clear that the
local Executive Safety
Comnmittee is the "major
resource for managing the
overall safety program..."

Memo makes some new safety

recommendations

25




(a)

(b)

(d)

Memo compliments Suess on
new "'Quality Circle Program"
which "stresses involvement and
team solutions to problems..."

| CERCLA SIGNIFICANCE OF THESE

Irrelevant since Monsanto is not
being accused of "operating"
MDCC. Monsanto has been
dismissed from this case with

By definition, Annual Surveys
Don't Equate to '"Daily" or
"Pervasive'' Control

Program simply supplemented
safety inspections done by
MDCC's insurance company
before and after 1975 (Suess
Dep. at 308)

CERCLA "'Operator Liability"
rules must not deter companies
such as Monsanto from
performing employee safety
inspections at their subsidiaries

26




b "w'i-::%!,‘_g::‘l_:;m:.,.._‘_m Sk i bt LG e i

(e) Such annual inspections are
consistent with the "investment"
relationship any parent has in
its subsidiaries

() BY THEIR VERY NATURE,
Safety Audits are typically
performed by OUTSIDE
INSPECTORS. The PURPOSE
of such audits is to get an
INDEPENDENT appraisal of
management's performance in
this critical area. That a second-
level parent (Fisher's parent)
should want to supplement
independent insurance
inspections with its own
inspections is not unusual, and
certainly not improper.

. . 4 . .
]

‘l — -
e e

27
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C.

OSHA Ambient Air & Noise Monitoring

(1)

@)

)

@

)

(6)

1977 or 1978 (2 or 3 years after
acquisition): Suess aftends Monsanto
4-day seminar (Suess Dep. at 240-41)

MDCC then buys air monitering
equipment so Suess can perform
required OSHA tests himself (Suess
Dep. at 254-55; Monitoring
equipment listed on PX-215 at
MD1366)

Suess decides he is not qualified to
use the equipment. (Dep. at 254-55)

Neither Fisher nor Monsanto made :
that decision |

At Suess' request, Monsanto sent a
tester to the plant periodically to
perform the required air and noise
sampling. (Id.)

This involvement in performing
sophisticated tests at MDCC's
request is no different than if MDCC
had hired an outside contractor to
perform the testing--as MDCC did

28
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¥

after the Slymans bought the

company

29




4 . e o - h: i i ;4 3 i - o , +

Bruce Duncan's November 10, 1978
"Notebook' (PX-215)

[D]id you use this in your work?
No.
Just sat in your office?

Just sat there gathering dust. (Id. at 305)

| (1) If Fisher had really "'controlled"

MDCC, this request for Suess to
draft a formal Environmental
Assessment wouldn't have been
ignored. That it was ignored proves
MDCC's independence, not Fisher's
"control."

(2) Duncan's unanswered request was
for Suess, not Fisher, to prepare the
formal "Environmental
Assessment."

30
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e. . Monsanto's July 29, 1977 Landfill Survey
- (PX-202) :

(1) Fisher wrote Wheeler on gne
occasion asking for MDCC's landfill
usage in order to respondtoa -
Monsanto survey of the waste
disposal facility demand of Monsanto
and all of its subsidiaries.

(2) Suess filled out the survey form, but
didn't recall talking to anybody
about it. (Suess Dep. at 248-251)

(3) Nothing ever came of this survey.

31
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f.  August 21, 1978 Environmental Cost
Survey (PX-203)

(1)

2)

No evidence survey was used for any
management purpose:

"Lik_e this survey here. I haven't the
slightest idea what it's for. And
when I go back and talk to him
[Bruce Duncan at Fisher], what did
you do with it, what did you find out,
we haven't done anything with it yet.
It seems like everything just sat in
there.”" (Suess Dep. at 258)

No evidence, for example, of any

resulting restrictions on MDCC's
environmental expenditures.

32




£2.

February 14, 1979 Environmental Cost
Survey (PX-327)

(1) Environmental "cost'" information
requested of all Monsanto _
subsidiaries "worldwide," to be used
for both internal and external
purposes

(2) Intent was clearly to develop a total
Monsanto environmental control cost
figure to be used in governmental
relations

(3) No indication whatsoever the survey
is being used to impose any control
or restrictions on MDCC.

33




h. Fisher's Personnel Gvérsight

All of this based on a file folder "discovered"
by MDCC after the close of discovery

Court properly ruled in its June 23rd Opinion
that it "shall accord them the weight they
merit, takmg into consideration the manner
and time in which they were discovered and
submltted " (at 25)

(1) What the "folder' (Ex. B) proves:
On One Occasion in 1980:

(a) Wheeler informed Fisher in
advance of several major
personnel changes

(b) He provided this information in
the form of "'"'recommendations"

(¢) He discussed his
recommendations with Fisher

(d) He asked for Fisher's
"approval"

(2) What the folder doesn't prove:

34 .
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(a) No ewdence Flsher g_v_er_ao_mu;h

g -~ To the
contrary, Boyd and Kruse
testified they had no die casting
experience and that Wheeler ran
the plant

(b) The documents in the "folder"
support the conclusion that the
requests for approval were pro
forma:

February 22 L r:'

First sentence refers to discussions between Wheeler
and Blanchard "[d]uring the past few months. . . in general
terms" on the subject of organizational changes "I feel

should be made at MDCC. . .."

® Nowhere in the three-page single spaced letter does
Wheeler so much as allude to any comments ‘
Blanchard has made on personnel matters in
general, or the specific MDCC employees in
particular, in their prior discussions.

®  Wheeler assumes in his letter that Blanchard has
no familiarity with the people involved. Each

35




person is mtmduced with a description of his
current and prOposed future job description.

Particularly remarkable since the
recommendations include:

Plant Superintendent
Production Control Manager
Die Casting Foreman
Industrial Engineer

If Blanchard were invelved in the "active, daily and
pervasive' management of the MDCC plant, would he really
have needed to be told who these key emplnyees were?

Undated MDCC Memo from Ra etz to kohlberg

This is clearly a For Your Information memo, not a request
for approval: :

"To keep you informed regarding planned changes at
MDCC, I've enclosed a revised organizational chart ..."

First § refers to the changes becoming "effective on March

1, 1980,” ONE WEEK after Wheeler's February 22nd letter
to Blanchard first "proposed' them.
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3. Flsher Dld Not "Operate" MDCC Durmg The

Wheeler died in May. Rogers replaced him in
June of 1981. (Rogers Dep. at 4) |

a.

Draining, flushing and refilling of the
hydraulic lines on the die casting
machines and the trim presses had
already been completed by the time that
Rogers arrived at the plant. (Rogers Dep.
at 18-19)

'Plaintiffs have denied that any CERCLA

"releases' occurred during their perlod
of ownership (Plamtlffs Answer to
Counterclaims, at § 3) BUT THERE IS
NO DIFFERENCE BETWEEN
ROGERS' TENURE AND THEIR
SUBSEQUENT PERIOD OF

OWNERSHIP

Thls trial record is devoid of any evidence
of any "releases" during the June 1981 to
February 23, 1982 time period.
WHETHER OR NOT FISHER |
"OPERATED'" THE PLANT DURING
THAT NINE-MONTH PERIOD IS
THEREFORE IRRELEVANT
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® DX-81, submitted by plaintiffs,
shows the sngmficant labor expense
for the flushing and refilling was
incurred from September through
December of 1980. (MDC 220) No
internal time was recorded on the
PCB cleanup during June, July and
August. The $923.19 in time
incurred from September to
December was for the final round of
confirmatory samplmg and for the
manifesting of the Rollins shipment.
(See invoices for last round of
Donchue sampling at MDC 251, 254)

Rogers' frustration that he was not _
getting enough assastance in arranging for
the disposal of the drummed PCB waste is
further evidence the PCB cleanup was
being managed locally, and not by Fisher.

Monsanto sl!d. ultimately assist MDCC in
identifying a waste disposal firm that
would take the waste.

(1) But Monsanto was acting as an
INVESTOR interested in facilitating
the sale of the company, not as an
“"operator' interested in micro-
managing a subsidiary

38
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(a) There was no reason why the
barrels needed to be disposed of
lmmedlately, as Suess learned
directly from EPA in
Washington:

[By Mr. Caruso] Did maybe Monsanto also
help you to find a place that would accept the
barrels for disposal?

Yeah. They were the ones that--Well, I found a
place to get rid of them, because otherwise I
checked all I could. I don't know how many
telephone calls I made, but nobody would take
the stuff. They were all full, and you got to

~wait a year or two or maybe three.

And I talked to EPA in Washington, and I
told them my problem, and they sald well
just store them an an
what happened was when George Slyman
bought the plant, he didn't want them damn
things there. And so therefore it was put to
Monsanto, what were you going to do about
them.

And then they were the ones that got
Rollins to pick them up and take it. (Suess
Dep. at 132)
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(b) Siyman, not Fisher, was thus

- responsible for putting pressure
on Monsanto to use its influence
with Rollins to move MDCC up
to the head of the line of
companies waiting for scarce
disposal capacity.

(2) The disposal of the drummed waste

clearly did not contribute in any way
to the alleged site contamination.

40




f.  Rogers' alleged failure to investigate the
~ "distinct possibility"-of PCB
contamination under the paved driveway
to the north of the plant.

‘/C};;{CLA operator liability attaches to those who actually
and pervasively control plant operations at the time of the

release or disposal causing the contamination?” (June 23,
1995 Summary Judgment Opinion at 13, citing 42 U.S.C. §
9607(2)(2))

Second-guessing whether management should have
investigated historic contamination is not part of the test for
establishing CERCLA liability.
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IV, There was no de facto merger between Fisher and Old

MDCC

A

Fisher did not continue the business in 1975 far

1.

" more than an instant

No dispute that "second step" of transactlén
immediately followed upon the closing of the
first step at 2:00 pm on January 14, 1975.

Fisher did not ""continue the business’' for
purposes of the commeon law de facto merger
doctrine if it respected New MDCC's
Corporate Veil

Plaintiffs are not even contending they have
any evidence to pierce New MDCC's corporate
veil during Fisher's period of stock ownership

Plaintiffs' argument really proves that New
MDCC, not Fisher, is the "successor™ to Old
MDCC:

"The fact that the officers and directors of

new MDCC were changed from-old MDCC (as
Fisher installed some of its employees in its Iowa
office in these capacities) does not negate continuity
of enterprise. . . . Continuity of enterprise requires
a consideration, as one of many relevant factors, of
whether there was sufficient continuity in
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management--without regard to titles-—-to warrant
the finding that the new business continues

essentlally unchanged Here, the gxgryghglmmg

MDCC." Plaintiffs' Memo In Opposntmn To
Defendant's Motion For Summary Judgment, at
13.

There is no equitable basis to find a de facto
merger here '

1. New MDCC acquired all of the assets of Old
MDCC -- No assets were stripped.

2. . Thereafter, New MDCC enhanced its ablllty to
satisfy any third-party l:abillty by

a. . Eliminating the company s debt

b. ' Re-investing the company's earnings in
capital improvements
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Fisher did not "profit" from the decision to
structure the 1975 transaction as a
§368(a)(1)(C) "reorgamzatmn "

a.

Fisher was penalized by the "C"
reorganization structure because it .
acquired the Old MDCC assets at the
transferor's basis, not the actual (higher)
price Fisher paid. Fisher's depreciation
basis was therefore reduced, and the tax
gain on its eventual sale to the Slymans
was increased, resuiting in a tax penalty
to Fisher equal to the tax benefit to the
Schroeder family. (The rates of taxation
for the Schroeder famrly individuals may
have differed from Fisher's corporate tax
rate, however.) Sp_e, e.g . Blttker and

(Gth Ed")

at §12.43[2]:

"Under §362(b), property acquired
by a corporation in connection with a
reorganization ordinarily takes a
carryover basis equal to the transferor's
basis, increased by any gain recognized to
the transferor on such transfer ﬂomh




If the acqu1s1tlon transaction fails to
quallfy as a reorganization, the transferee
corporation is entitled to a cost basis for
the acquired propertles under §1012,
presumably equal to the fair market value
of the consideration paid by the
transferee."

b.. The only ones who prof' ited from the
structuring of the 1975 transaction were
the sellers, the Schroeder family.

The plaintiffs are asking the Court to impose an
unprecedented, retroactive (20 years after the fact)
CERCLA punishment on a common, recognized
form of corporate acqmsntions The implications of
such a ruling would be enormous. There is no
indication in the statute that Congress ever
intended such a result. :

The Court should dispose of this de facto merger
argument the way the First Circuit characterized a
similar intermediate transaction in a CERCLA

case:

'992 F. 2d 401,

407n.5 (1st C!l‘. 1993) (emphasns added).
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V. Fisher was not the CERCLA "Owner" of New MDCC's
facility. -

A. January 14, 1975 title possession was for an

instant. Fisher's role as an intermediary title
holder acting as the conduit for the ultimate owner,
New MDCC, does not give rise to CERCLA
liability. Robertshaw antm!g Co. v. Watts

&egu_lamr_QQ. 807 F. Supp 144, 150 (D. Maine
1992); In .

559, 568 (W D Mich. Bankr 1990).

Fisher's role as an intermediary for Teresa

“Slyman's purchase of New MDCC's real property

was no different.

1. Asthe Court noted in its June 23rd Opinion,
""the Slymans were successfully able to
represent to the Internal Revenue Service that
they had effectively taken over New MDCC as
of December of 1981." (Opinion at 9; see also
Glaser Dep. at 67-74; DX-45, 53)

2. Having taken this position for tax purposes,
they should be estopped from taking a
contrary position for CERCLA purposes.

3, Inany event, Slyman's request that Fisher
cause New MDCC to declare the property
"dividend" before year-end 1981, and
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Slyman's contention that it had ""economic"

" control over MDCC as of year-end (DX-53),

" refutes any possiblity that Fisher used its title
ownership for any purpose other than to act as
a conduit,

The PCB cleanup had been completed one
year hefore Fisher's second period of title
ownership. Plaintiffs deny that any CERCLA
releases occurred after this cleanup. So the
second period of title ownership should be
irrelevant to their liability case against Fisher.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

INC,,

Defendant.

. )
MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., et al,, )

) a
Plaintiffs, )
)

. ) No. 93 C 0325
)
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, ) Judge Reynolds

)
)
)
)

REFERENCE LIST FOR TIMELINE SUMMARY

1952: North Holton Street Plant Opens (Plaintiffs’ Proposed Findings of Fact (“PPFOF™) No. 2)

1958 or earlier: Plant Begi’ns use of Pydraul F-9 (Suess at 68)

© 1965: Plant begins use of Pydraul 312 (Suess at 72-73)
1972: Plant switches to Pydraul 312C (no PCBs) (Suess at 71.76)
12/9/74: New MDCC incorporated (DX-111, 94)
1/13/75: New MDCC agrees to sell its stock to Fisher for Old MDCC's assets (DX-97, 111)
1/14/75: Old MDCC exchanges with Fisher its assets for Monsanto stock (PX-314, 320)
1/14/75: Transfer of Old MDCC's assets from Fisher to New MDCC (DX-112, 113)
1/14/75: John Wheeler becomes New MDCC's General Manager & Exec. V.P. (Boyd at 31-32)

7/29/77: Monsanto Landfill Survey (PX-202)

1978: Monsanto begins Annual S&PP Surveys (PX-207)
8/21/78: Fisher Environmental Cost Survey (PX-203)

11/10/78: Bruce Duncan's Notebook (PX-215)




2/14/79: Monsanto Worldwide Environmental Cost Survey (PX-327)

1980: PCB fluid drained and flushed from MDCC's equipment and stored in drums (PPFOF
No. 51, DX-81)

2/22/80; "Newly Discovered” Personnel Folder, PX-B

April or May 1981: John Wheeler dies (Rogers at 40)

June 1981: Art Rogers becomes Temporary General Manager (Rogers at 40)

11/18/81: New MDCC contracts with Rollins to dispose of drummed PCB waste (DX-76)
12/14/81: Fisher accepts Slyman's offer to purchase New MDCC (DX-20)

12/23/81: Slyman's lawyer urges Fisher to acquire MDCC's real property by 12/31/81 (DX-45)
12/24/81: New MDCC deeds its real property to Fisher (DX-109, 117)

12/26/81: Slyman contends it acquired New MDCC “for economic and tax purposes” (DX-33,
Glaser Dep. at 71-74)

2/23/82: Closing Date for sale of New MDCC's stock and real property to the Slymans
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., ETAL.,

)
)
Plaintiffs, )
)
V. ) No. 93 C 0325
: )
FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, ) Judge Reynolds
INC., }
)
Defendant. )
)
LIST OF KEY WITNESSES

@ Fred J. Schroeder - President and principal shareholder of Milwaukee Die
Casting Company of Wisconsin ("Old MDCC").

e John Wheeler - Vice President and General Manager of Milwaukee Die Casting
Co., inc, {"New MDCC") until his death in 1981, Also was a manager at Old
MDCC under Fred J. Schwoeder.

& Earl Suess - New MDCC's Manager of Manufacturing. Suess was given
responsibility at New MDCC for bringing the plant into full compliance with PCB
regulations. Suess was in charge of the project to drain and flush PCB-based
hydrautic fluid from MDCC's die casting machines in 1880,

e Larry Kruse - Director of Service Operations at Fisher. Mr. Kruse also served
on the Board of Directors of New MDCC from August, 1981 until February 1,
1982.

@ James H. Boyd - Vice President, Manufacturing at Fisher Controls. Mr, Boyd
also was President of New MDCC from December, 1974 through April, 1979.

L Art Rogers - Manager at Fisher in the personnel depariment, Rogers was
assigned as Temporary General Manager of New MDCC in 1981 after the death
of John Wheeler.

George Slyman - Chairman of the Board of Slyman Industries, a plaintiff in this

action, untif 1992. Husband to Teresa Slyman, present title holder to New
MDCC's reat property, also a plaintiff in this action.




Teresa Slyman - Wife of George Slyman, she holds title to New MDCC's real
property and is a plaintiff iri this action.

Robert Glaser - attorney for Slyman family who handled the Slymans' acquisition
of New MDCC.
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UNITED a%ﬁ DI JCT COURT
EA:.‘; S'ra{\ “WISCONS IN

\3
Chambers of gsﬁt:‘ 296 Federal Building
JUDGE JOHN W, REYNOLDS Milwaukee, Wis. 53202

Mr. Carmen D, Caruso ‘ Telephone: (414} 297-3189
Attorney at Law ) L
30 N, LaSalle Street, 3000 . October 17, 1995
Chicago, IL. 60602 . Mr. Michael Ash —

: : Attorney at Law
Mr, .
Atmﬁ;g;“:f_ i::;’“’““ 780 W, Water Street
111 E. Wisconsin Avenue, #2100 . Milwvaukee, WI 53202 .
Mn.lwapkee; W1 53202 Mr. Andrew R. Runhing ,//

Attorney at Law
200 E. Randolph Drive

Dear Counsel.: - Chicago, IL 60601

Ra: Case No. 93-C-325 Milwaukee Die Castihg v. Fisher Controls

Subiar~s {2';4 M} ate for court trial

‘ - %i ] , referred to abeve,
whic. %LW \5/ ,5? O&M a on _ Tuesday, Qctober 24;__1-’39'5

i
has b [0 /9‘ [Ci {/93’ ; War for said day -
o 9, )
- 1'»7 {0 .
X _ : court ¢alendar.

g | \ _.

Serve as notice that the court

trial is hereby rescheduled st __10:00 a.m. |
on _Wednesday, October 25, 1995 in Courtroom No. _284

Federal Building, Mflwaukee, Wisconsin, before Judge John W.
Reynolds,
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% WISCONSIN
_ 1\
Chambers of qa@t 296 Federal Building
JUDGE JOHN W. REYNOLDS Milwaukee, Wis. 53202
Mr. Carmen D. Caruso h Telephone: (414) 297-3188
Attorney at Law
30 N. LaSalle Street, #3000 ) October 17, 19875
Chicago, IL 60602 Mr. Michael Ash —
: Attorney at Law
Mr. ' ;
Attoiizgaiz i:ﬁkQVitz 780 N. Water Street
Milwaukee, WI 53202
111 E. Wisconsin Avenue, #2100 . ‘ _ .
Milwauvkee, WI 53202 Mr. Andrew R. Running V//,
Attorney at Law
. 200 E. Randolph Drive
Dear Counsel: ‘ _ Chicaga, IL 60601

Rz: Case No. $3-C-325 Milwaukee Die Castihg v. Fisher Controls

Subject: Change of date for court trial

The court trial , referred to above,

which was scheduled at 10:00 a.m. on _ Tuesday, Qctober 24, 1995

has been removed from the court calendar for said day - °

1 at the request of .
U ¥X] because of a conflict on the couvrt calendar.
This letter will serve as notice that the _court
trial is hereby rescheduled at _ 10:00 a.m.’
on  Wednesday, October 25, 1995 in Courtroom No. 284

Federal Building, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, before Judge John W.
Reynolds,

Very truly yours

Rita zZvefs, Deputy Clerk
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COURT MINUTES Beputy Clerk

- Court Reporcer
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DATE: 9-6-95 MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING, et al.
CASE Ng.__ 93-C-325 E
HON. JOHN 4. 3EVNOLNS g

| E FISHER CONTROLS

-

TIME CALLED: Q@O TIME CONCLUDED: 35@
f

NATURE OF HEARING: SCHEDULING CONFERENCE CALL

Y

APPEARANCES: Pltfs: Carmen D. Caruso’(312-368—3330

v
Deft: Michael Ash 273-3500 ,

‘ v
Andrew R. Running 12~-861-2000

" DISPOSITION: _

{NOTE TO LAW CLERK: Have certificates of interest been checked? — )

Plaintiff's Experts:

Defendant's Experts:

Dispositive Motions:

Discovery Cutoff:

TPT: ' //

Est. Length of Trial: / 51 (L{’*—«/}O

/::T)or dJT: L0:00a.m. Tuesdav, ((‘1 ?‘(

;, and every Tuesday
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Case No. 93—3—0325

DATE TITLE : TAB .

03/27/95 Fisher’s Responses to Plaintiffs’ Statement of 74
Facts in Opposition to Defendant’s Metion for
Summaiy Judgment of Countse I, II and IIT of
Amended Complaint (WITH ATTACHMENT)
{5EE FOLDER 5 DUE TO SIZE OF DDCUHENT)

03730795 Plaintiffs’ Motion for Leave to File Surreply in 75
| Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Summary

i Judgnient in Counts I, IX and III of the Amended

1 Complaint
Il

|

|

|

03/30/95 Plaintiffs’ surreply in Opposition to Motion 76
for Bummary Judgment on Counts I, II and IIT of
Amended. CQmplaint

| 04/03/95 Motion to Supplement the Record (with Exhibits) 7

04/04/95 Fisher Controls International, Inc.’s Response to ' 78 ,
Plaintiffs’ Motion for Leave to File Surreply s
04/10/95 Fisher Controls International, Inc.’s Opposition 79
to Motion to Supplemeérnt Record
04/21/95 Stipulation and Agreed Motion to Bifurcate Trial 80
and to Limit Liability Trial to Summary Judgment
Record
05/05/95 cancellation of Court Trial (Scheduled for May 10 81

1995 - hearing will be rescheduled at a later date)

06/23/95 Decision and ORDER Granting Summary Judgnent in 82
Part (Fisher‘s motion for summayy judgment against
the plaintiffs’ state law c¢laims is Granted, and
the state law claims are Dismissed; Fisher’s motion.
for summary judgment againat the plaintiffs' CERCLA
claims under 42 U.S.C. § 9607(c) is Denied, but its
motion to limit those claims to contributery
liability rather than joint aifd several liability
! is Granted. Further, the plaintiffs’ motion to
supplement the record is Granted.)

| 08/22/95 Conference Call at 9:30 a.m. on September 6, 1995 a3
bafor Judge John W. Reynolds, to Discuss Further
Scheduling of this Case, Court will Initiate the

Call

! PLEA/MILWAUKE. E -7=




DATE

02/3/95

02/03/95

02/06/95

02/09/95

02/09/95

02/24 /85
03/10/95

03/10/95

03/11/95

03/27/95

03/27/95

¥.8. District CQurt . Eastern District of Wisconain
Case Ho. $3-C-0325

IITLE

Filed with the Clerk ~ Plaintiffa’ Response to
Motion for Partial Summary. Judgment on Counts III,
IV, and VI of Original COmplalnt

Plaintiffs’ Response to Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment on Counts III, IV, and VI of original
Complaint (with Exhibits)

Figher controls International, Inc.‘s Answer to
Plaintiffaf amended Counts I thru III

Fisher Contorls International, Inc.’s Memorandum
in Support of Partial Summary Judgment aa' to Countas
I thru IIT of Plaintiffe’ Amended Complaint -

(SEE FOLDER #3 DUE TO SIZE OF DOCUMENT)

Fisher Contorls International, Inc.’s ubtion
For Partial Summary Judgment

Plaintiffe’ Reply to Counterclaim

?1nintiffs"Ragppnsa to Defendant Fisher Controls
International, Ing.’s Statement of Facts

Plaintiffs’ statement of Facts in Opposition to
Defendants’ Motion for Summary Judgment on Counts
T, IT and III of Amended Complainta with Exhibits
attached 3 Volumes

(SEE FOLDER #4 DUE TO SIZE OF DOCUMENT)

Plaintiffs’ Memorandum of Law in oppositien to
Defendants’s Motion for Summary Judgmant on Counts
I, IT and III nf Anendad Complaint

Reply to Plaintiff’s Responae to Fisher’s Statement
of Facts in. Support of its. Motion for Partial

Summary Judgment on all Cercla counts (I thru III)

Fisher COntrols JInternational, Inc’s Reply teo
Plaintiffsf Opposition to Fisher’s Motion for
Summary Judgment

PLEA/MILWAUKE, E -G

€3

- 64

65

12

67

68

69

70

71

72

73




FOLDER 2

12/22/94

01/05/95

01/05/95

Undated

01/10/95

01/10/95

01/23/95

01/24/95

01/25/95

01/26/95

01/26/95
01/26/95

Fisher Controls International, Inc.’s Memorandum
in support of Its Motion for Partial Summary’
Judgment (with Appenﬂix)

Notice of Filing - Plalntiffsf Reply in Support of
Motion for lLéave to Amend Complaint

Plaintiffa’ neply in Support of Motion for Leave
to Amend Complaint (with Affidavit of Carmen D.
Caruso and two pages of Robert E. Glaser’s
deposition dated 11/9/94)

stipulation (regarding taking of expert witness
depositions and inspactiun after January 20, 1995)

Motion for Leave to File Surreply in Opposition to
Plaintiffs’ Motion for Leave to Amend Complaint

Fisher cOntrols International, Inec.’s Surreply
in opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion far Leave to
Amend Complaint

Motion for Laavé to Defer Briefing Schedule on
Defendant’s Hotion for Partial Summary Judgment

Fisher Controls International, Inc.’s Motlon for
an Extension of Time

ORDER (Order bDated August 30, 1994 iws amended as
provided in the Stipulation af the Parties filed
on January 23, 19485)

DECISION and ORDER Denying in Part and Granting
in Part Motion Amend.Cdmplaint (plaintlffs'
motion to amend: their complaint by eliminating
their state law claims is DENIED; plaintiffs'
motion to amend: Counts I. through III in their
complaint is GRANTED; plaintiffs’ motion for
extension of time to file its response to the

defendant’s motion for summary judgment is GRANTED)

Notice of Filing (of plaintiffe’ Amended Complaint)
Amended Complaint

PLEA/MILWAUKE. E B

51,

52

53

54

85

56

57

58

59

60

61

62
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MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING, et al.,

"

FISHER CONTROLS, et al. No. 93-C-325

J

TAXE NOTICE that the sbove-entitled case has been sat far  conference call .

at 9:30 a.m. . an Wed., ie&en__gr 6 1995, befora Judge John W.

Reynolds. to discuss further scheﬂuling of. this case. The court
| will initiate the call. .
) __SOFRON B, NEDILSKY .

Data August 22 1995

414-297-—3188
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To

Mr. Carmen D. Caruso Mr. Michael Ash

Attorney at Law Attorney at Law
30 M. YaSalle Btreet, #3000 780 N, Water Street
Chicago, IL 60602 Milwaukee, WI 53202 /

Mr. Andrew R. Running
Attorney at Law

200 E. Randolph Drive -
Chicago, IL. 60601

Mr. Richard Sankovitz

m:tamey at Law
111 B. Wisconsin Avenue, I=2100

Milwaukee, WI 53202
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT |
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC., and
THERESA A, SLYMAN,

Pllnﬁﬂ‘.l

v, Civil Actlhqn No.. 9@-&-@2%

FISHER CONTHOLS INTERNATIONAL,

" GopmEY & KAHN, §.Cs
Dafendant.

DECISION AND ORDER GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT [N PART

In this case, the plaintiffs, Milwaukes Die Casting Co. and the die
cusling plant's present ownars, sue the plant's former ownar, Fisher Contrals
Internatianal, Inc., because tho plant property Is contaminated with PCBs. Milwaukee|

Die Caating and its ownars allege vielatlons of the Compreheansive Environmental

'Response, Compansation, and Lisbility Act ("CERCLA"], 42 U.8.C. § 9601(9), and

gtata law breach of contract, misreprasentation, and fraud clsims. Fisher Controls
has filed two motions for partial summary Judgment which, together, request that the
court dismiss all of tha plalntifés’ claimg. In the first motion, Flsher Controls asserts

that the s18te law claims ure Earred by the appliceble statute of limitations, and that

metion Is granted. The other motlon asserts that Fisher does not meet the deflnition

of a llabla porty under CERCLA, and so the CERCLA claim should be dismissed; vr, In
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ha alternaliva, that Milwaukee Die Casting’s ownsers ¢o not have standing 1o sue.

and so thelr CERCLA claims should be dismlissed; and finally, that any claims for
CERCLA ligbility whigh thls coum allows ageinst Fisher Controls should be for lts
proportionate share of the clean-up costs, and not for full (i.e. joint and saveral)
llability. The motlon for summary judgment against the CERCLA oleims shall be
denled, and all CERCLA claime shall remsin In the case. Howaver, the court agrees
that the plaintiffs’ CERCLA cleims should be limited to contributory liability, and not
Joint and seversl liabllity, and g0 that portion of the summary Judgment motion shall
ba grantad. Thus, all of the plaintiffs’ CERCLA contribution clalms remain.
L_FAGCTS

The parties do not disagrea on the facta of this case, but they differ
drastically over what factual inferences to draw and what legal conclusions 1o make.

Milwaukee Die Casting Company, &8 Wisconsin corporation from 1908 to
197E {"0ld MDCC"), and & Dalaware corporstion from 1875 to the present ("New
MDCC"}', has for decades supplied Fisher Contrals international, Co. ("Fishar
Controls™), with gluminum and zine dle casting for manufacturing regulators and

controf valves. Tha Schroader family owned and managed Old MDCC until Fisher

Controels acqulred It In 1878, Monsanto Company ("Monsanto®) was Fisher Controls’

parent company from 1969 1o 1992,

1At all ralevant times, Qld and New MDCC have been located on two

parcels of real property at North Holten and West Hubbard Streets in
Milwaukea, Wisconsin.
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In the mid 18€0°s and early 1670's Old MDCC used a Monsanto fire-
ratardant ofl which contained PCBs? In the hydraulic lines running to the dis casting

machinas. Earl Suess |"Suess”), & 43.yoar veteran ot MDCC and the plant managar
In charge of the PCB ¢lean-up in the 1970‘s end early 1980°s, testified by deposition
that die casting machines ~always” leak ofl, ahd that In the 60°s and “70's, the oll
that drippad en to the foor at Old MDCC was sucked up by vacuums, end wes gllhes
dumped on the grounds, In the sewer, or In & dumplng tank for fluids. Ken Worzalla,
on Gld MOCC maintenance employee in tho carly 1970's, testificd that he and othors
had on seversl oecaslons dumpad 45-50 gallons of oil and debris gatherad from the
die casting floor out onto Qld MDCC's gra\}ai parking lot. Wiilla Means, a shipping
and recelving empioyee, also tastified to witnaasing two or threa ail dumps anto tha
gravel batwean 1976-1880. Suess and Worzglia-explained that the barrels In which

the olls had bsen stored were often partially amplled into a t1ank and then tipped over

outside 1o draln. Suess alsa told of hydraulic fluld seeping into the cbncrou In the
die casting area.

In the summer of 1874, Qld MDCC's pl‘csid;‘.'.n'l: and principal shareholder,
Frod Schroeder, Infarmed Fishcr Controlg that he intandad to ratire and that he and

hig family, who together ownsd all stock In Old MDCC, wantad ta sell the company.

*Dorland’s lliystrated Madical Dictionary 201 (28th ed. 1994) defines
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) as: “[Alny of a group of substances in which

~ chlorine replaces hydrogen in biphenyla, used as heat-transfer sgents and as

Ingulators in cloctrieal oquipment. They ate chamically very stable and
aceumulate in animal tissues, causing & variaty of toxic effects ineluding
carcinogenesis.”

700
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Fishar Controls did not want to risk businase disruption from lts largost dls casting
vendar, and sesing that Old MDCC had been a profitable concern, decided to buy aut
the Schraader family. For tax purposes, Schroader and Fisher Controls structorad the

sale In Two parts, First, a New MDCC was Incorporated In Delaware In Dacember of

1874, and then on January 13, 1978, Fisher Gontrols acquired all New MDCC shares
in exchange for the promise to transfer to New MDCC the business and asse1s of Old
MDCC. On Januery 14, 1975, Old MDCC deeded Its businass and assets to Fisher
Controls, which immedlately deeded them ;o New MDCC.

Fisher Controle owned sl of New MDCC's shares from Januery 13,
1875, untl February 23, 18B2. Fisher Controls’ manufacturing vice president, James
Boyd ("Bayd“), bacama president of New MDCC, and Fisher Controls’ president and
Its chlef financlal officer served as members of the New MDCC board of diractors.
However, new MDCC formally maintained a separate corporate existence, and
remained adequately caphallzed as & going, Independently viabla business. In fact,
MDCC profited during Fisher Controla’ stock awnership, rstired debt, investsd nearly
two miliion dollars in capital exponditures, and Increased Its cash reserves. MDCC
prepared its own yearly budget and forecasts, paid ite own bills, collected its own
accounts receivable, pald Its employes salarles directly, and malntalned a pension
plan geparata from Fighar Controls.

Having little or no experience In die castnp, Flsher Controls toek fimited
actlons regarding most of the operations at New MDCC fram 1975 until 1981, The

New MDCC board of directors {all Fisher Contrels persennel) chose Old MRCC

AD T2A
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employee, John Whesler, to be the Naw MDCC ganaral manager and exacutiva vice

pragldnnt Fighar Conteols manufacturlng vlca-president exp!alnud

Other 1han a user of die castings, wa had no axpartise
within the Fisher organization relating to tha manutfacture of
die castings . .. .

s

Mr. Wheeler had bacome Mr, Schrader’s [sic) undersiudy in
a broad sense in the management of the business, and it
was Mr. Schrader’s [slc] recommandstion that we name Mr,
Wheeler to the rospansgibility for the oparetion of the
company, . . .

And agsin, | would smphatiza that we looked to him

of necassity bacsusa we didn't have those kind of

capabliitias and that because we didn't have those

capabllitias, the opararlen of the cempany ramained

strongly in the hands of tha peapla who had raally haan

tgspons/ble for It bafore . . . .
(Boyd Dep, at 75-78.)

From 1975 until his retirement In the (ate 1870's, Boyd acted as Flsher
Controls’ contact point for monthly financials from New MDCC. Fisher Controls
autharized New MDCC to moks cartain lovels of capital expenditures on its awn, but
when expanditures excesded thoes lavels, New MDCC nesded Boyd's authorization.

Boyd, in turn, could autharize expenditures up 10 @ certaln level, and then woauld have

to advance them to his bossg or to tha Fishar Cantrols board. Boyd explained that
Wheslar contacted him whan there was an “impartant igsua to be rasolvad er some
report on a specific accumplishment such 83 schievement of budget or achlevement

of seles.” (ld. at B1.) Cther than that, "Mr, Whaaler was basically independent in

tha diraction and pperation of Milwaukea Dle Casting Company, and was guided by

5

SITIH 7 ANVIMUIY 0022 198 2T¢ XV4 T+IT NON 96/98/00




——— meymemsmm e matees e ®smsase cmans = sasas e T
v ‘| L. T e o il

[Boyd], ss pragldent, and by tha board of directars, who wero Figher Controls
offlcars, only In the vary broad responsibllities of the company operation.” (id.) Boyd
testified in his depasition that he did not remember aver being teld of environmantal
problems or of the use or clean-up of PCBg et MDCC.

Alter Boyd retired, Larry Kruse ("Kruse®), the director of sefvica
operations at Fisher Controls, “teok on fespunsibilll.v {or Milwaukes Dla.” (Kruse
Dep. at 13.) As Kruse explains the situation: "Milwaukee Die, on a day-by-day
sltuation, pretty much operated autonomously of Fisher Cantrols, but as all
corporations raquire, It had to have sameplace to report Into, so | was assigned the
respansibllity.” (Id, at 14.) Kruse rook In financlal reports and hendled capitat
expenditurs requests.

During Wheeler’s tenura as genaral manager, from 1975 to 1981, tha
campany began to flush out the hydraullc fluld In Its dle cesting equipment. Suess
testified that Wheeler put him in charge of cleaning out the hydraullc lines to gst the
PCE lavels down well below the maximum of 50 parts per million ("ppm™). After

flushing the lines, Suess gat tham all below the maximum allowed by law. The

flughed-out liquid was stored In barrels, and Suess turned to Monsanto amployee, Dr.
Craddock, for advice on how to store and dispose of those barrels. They waere put In

8 well-marked PCE storage area, quite visible 10 those who toured the plant. Suess

explained thet na ane from Fishar Controls hed anything ta da with tha actual
flushing of the PCB fiulis.

AD 72A
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Fisher Controls taok a more activa role in non-PCB plant safaty matters.
An Insurance company inspscted Naw MDCC on a bimanthly basis, and sent raports
1o Fisher Controls, When Wheeler did not act promptly on safety recommandations
regarding nolse and other non-PCB related hazards, Fisher Contrals wrate him to get
moving on these safety measures, and ha did. In July of 1977, Fisher Controls sant
& lotter to Whealer talling him 1o fill out 8 Monsanto queationnaire on waste disposal
neads, and on August 21, 1978, Fishar Controls’ environmental operations director
requestad a summary of New MDCC's projected environmental costs for 1978 and
1979. In addition, Fisher Controls’ parent, Mansanto, conducted quarterly OSHA
inspectians at New MDCC.

in May 1881, Wheeler dled suddenly, and Flsher Controls found ltself
with & subsidiary In need of help to fill a “big hole In the organization.” {Kruss Dep.
st 26,7 Although personnel at Fisher Controls thought of New MDCC a5 a
"stepchitd™, end trled to keep their distance from New MDCC gs customer end @
parant corparation, Fishar Controls had to teke responsibility whan Wheeler died. So
they sent Arthur Ragers (*Rogers”), a Fishar Controls manager with a background In
personnel management, to New MDCC as the interim genaral manager. Rogers also
mainiained his titls at Fishar Contrals, and ha understood that hia mandate weas to
pverses URion contract nagotiations and 1o "¢valuate the staff or go outside and
Interview candidates as posslole successors to the GM positlon.™ (Rogers Dep, at €.}
Although Rogers acquired bottom-line responaibility for the day-to-dey operations of

the plant end lts profitability, he knew nothing of die casting, and ralled heavily on its

SIT1d B ANYTHAIH 00ZZ T98 TIE XVd 22'1T NOW $8/92/90




00

"' SENT BY:GODFREY & KAMN \ i B-26-85 :10:02AM :FAX # (M1B) 2-:3:‘/154590255100019-131255:# 8
‘ A

employees 10 continue thelr thus far successful oparations. Rogera stayed out of all
negotiations over pricing and sales 1o Fisher Controls because ha falt he could not be
objective in his dual rale &s Flsher Controls employee and New MDCC ganaral
manager. Rogers reported 1o Kruse at Fisher Contrals, who described himsalf during
that perim_i as In 8 "caretaker role to make sure that day-by-day operations were
going on In the same fashlon os before [Wheeler’s death].” (Kruse Dep. et 50.)
Kruse reported to Fisher Controls’ head of North American operations, Jim Teegarden
("Teegarden”), who had "ultimate rosponsisﬂlty {for Fisher Contrels] throughout,”
tig, ar 49.) ‘

Kruse tastified that thare cams a time whan he Isarned that there weare
PCBs at New MDCC, and he dlscussed It with Rogers and Teegarden. Kruse sald ha
did nat know that hydraulic lines had been flushed, but he knew that barrels of PCB-
laden fluld needad removal. He received status reports on PCB removal from Rogers,
and pasged them on to Teegarden. As the months passed, Fisher Controls declded to
sell the plant, and Rogars’ role changed to one of overseaing ramaval of barrels of
PCE fiuld and tha sale of the company. In a lengthy handwritten lettar 10 Kruse et
Fisher Controls, Rogers indicated how frustrated he was with Flsher Controls’ lack of
gsslstanca an the PCA removal. In tate 1981, Suass informed Rogers that thera was
some potential for PCB hazards on the grounds—bath outslda under the now-pavad
parking lot, and Inside In the die casting area, bui Rogers does not specifically

remember whether he told Kruse or other Fisher Controls parsonnel about the
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potential problem. No steps wara takan to canfitm or deny the contamingtion
possibllity.

In the fall of 1981 and sarly 1982, Guorge Slyman decloed thart his
company, Slyman Industriss, Inc.* would buy New MDCC. For tax purposas, Fisher
cdntrola again beeame the record awner aof the propsrty from December 24, 1881 to
February 23, 1982. On January 7, 1882, the United States Environmentes! Protaction
Ageney (tha "EPA") Issusd an sdminlstrative complaint agalnst New MBCE for PCB
regutatary vielations found during an ingpaction of the plant almost twe yaars earlier,
on April 21, 1980, Counsel for Fishar Cantrols informed tha EPA that the PCB
hydraulic fluid had been removed from the machines and disposer.f of properly. and
the case was eventually resalved with 2 41,500 fine. George Slymen's atromey was
informed of the EPA complaint In January 1982. The transfer 100k place
nonethaless, and on February 23, 1982, Fisher Controls sclg all of the commen
sr;ares of New MDCC to Slyman Industries end the proparty ta Therssa Slyman,
George’s wife—although the Slymans wera successiully able to reprasant to the |
Internal Ravanue Service that ihevkhad affectively taken over New MDCC ae of
Decembar of 1931. |

Secrion 14 of the contract dafined the agreemeant Slyman and Fishar
Controla had mada regarding Fisher Contrels’ futurs Ilabllity 1o tha Stymans for PCB

contamination at Milwaukee Die;

* The cammon stock of Slyman Industries is whally owned by membars of
the Siyman family, and Siyman Industries ewns all shares in New MDCC,

8
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The Campany hag received a Comptamt end Notlce of
Opportunity for Hearing dated January 7, 1982 cancarning
ailaged vig'ations of the Toxi¢. Subsrances Control Act
ansmg our of glleged concentrations of PCB's within Its die
casting machines, The Company &l8o recelved s lettar
dared November 28, 1976 from the Dapariment of Natural
Resources, State of Wisconsin, advising of an apparent
viclation of WPDES peimit no, WI-6001465 and |
subsaquently undsr Jetter dated Dacember 10, 1875, the

. Company apprized the Depnnrnan! of the actlons teken to
corract any violation. . .. [Alny violatian of sny law, rule or
regulation In existenca on the deto of the closing stising out
of the use by Company of PCB’s priarto the closing shall
be the obligation and responsibility of tha Seller. Any
personal injury claims against the Company or the Buyer
arising out of the use by Cr)mpanv of PCB's prior to the

i closing shall remain tha ubllgation and rasponsibllltv of the

‘ Seller as provided heiein. . . . Sallar’s obligations under this

i Saction 14 shall Terminate on Dscamber 31, 1984 as to die

casting maghines snd on December 31, 1889 s ta othar-
property except for claims assarzac} by Buyer in writing prior
to such detes.

{Dee. 23, 1995, Fisher Mem, & E ot 15-16.)

On Decernbar 23, 1983, New MDCC was tested for PCB contamination.

All rgsults for dis casting machinaa'faii below the federal maximum of 850 ppm.
. Howevar, fous sreas of the plant téstod at PCB concentratlons ranging from 75 ppm
10 2,800 ppm, and the sewer below a die casting maching tested at BB ppm. In

Februgry 1884, Styman indusirias’ [awyer wrota Fisher Comrolé glving formal notice
of Stymarn Industrles’ cialm for indamnification for future FCR tasting and cieanup
costs at the entlfe MOCC facility. Siyman Industries advised Fishar Contrals that
thara wera thirteen arass of concern, and that more tests wauld be taken becauss

amployeed had dlseloaed that oil hod been dumped bahind thae factary years ago.

Fishar Controls rasponded with a requast for detalled Informiation regarding PCB

10
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concerns and the need for additional action, but received no further correspondence
on the subject of PCB gontamination for tha next seven years and elght months,

In September 1981, New MDCC’s lendar’s anvironmantal consultant
found PCB contamination an Néw MDCC's concrete and wooden flonrs, utility
tunnefs, seweér trenches, golls, and other locations on the premises and on the
property. On Navember 4, 1992, Slyman Industries again contacted Fisher Controls
regarding the contaminents. Slyman ladustries and Theresa Slyman have hired
enviranméntal consultants 1o audit the new MDCC property. The conaultants
estimated the costs of decontamination to excead 41.6 million.

Qn April 12, 1983, Tharasa Siymen, Slyman Industries, and New MDCC
filed this sult against Fisher Controls,

IL_ANALYSIS

The court must grant a matlon for gummary judgment If the pleadings,
depositions, answars to Interrogatories, sdmisslons, and affidavits “show that there Is
no genuine issus as 1o any materiel fact end that the moving party is entitled Lo
judgment as & matter of law.” Fed. R. Civ, P. B6(c). The party moving for summary
judgment has tha initial burden of asserting the absance of any dispute of materiai

fact. Celotex Corp v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1386). To withstand summary

judgment, however, the non-moving party "must set forth spacific facts showing that

thera is & ganuine Issue far wial." Fed. R, Giv, P, $6(s), Tha court must draw all
reascnable inferences thet a fact finder could summen frem the record In favor of the

non-maving party, Johngson v, Polker, 891 F.2d 136, 138 {7th Cir. 1989). This I8 so

11
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Paul Fire & Maring ins. Co,, 988 £.2d 323, 327 (7th Cir. 1883).
A, STATE LAW CLAIMS

The plalntiffs bave suesd for breach of contrasy, naglifent and sirley
liabltity misrepresentation, and fraud under Wisconsin law. All (hree ere barred by the
applicable Wisconsln statutes of limitations, e.ach of which I8 aix years® The
plaintiffs casuses of action arose no later than February of 1984° whan they
discavered their claims and damanded that Fisher Controls Indemnify them for testing
NG Claanup Costs. Yet tha plaintifte chose to walt to determine the extent of tha
possible FCE problem untll (ate 1_9?1;1 Bnd aarly 1.992. They did not sug untll 1893,
The six-yesr nmitarjqns perieds had long since run, Fisher Controls’ motion for

summary judgment against plaintiffs’ state law clalns 1 GRANTED.

fSection 893 A3 of the Wisconsin Statutes grants an aggrieved party six
years from the date of accrual to sue on & contract.

Section 883.52 of the wisconsin Statutes affords a six-year limitations
pariod for non-contract ections to recover demages for an injury to property.,

Saction B93,93(b) aleo provides for a six-year statutc of limitations for
fraud, which is deamed to have accrued upen dissovery of the facts
conttituting tho {roud.

“Tha contract cause of petion accrued avan earlsef—frnm the. moment tho
silaged braach nccurrad, S_gg - ; owh

Carn,, 497 N.W.24 115, 117 {Wis._ 1993) (braach of contract cause of a:tion '
sccrues from the time the braaek cecurs, even if the facts of the breach are
not knewn by the party having the right of action).

12
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Fisher Controls has have asserted three bases for complate or partial

summary judgment on tThe CERCLA claims. First, It contends that it 18 not liabla as an
"awnar or _oparutor' under CERCLA. Swcond, It urgues that Theresa Slyman and
Slyman Industries do nat have standing to assert 8 CERCLA violatlon. Finglly, Fisher
Controls asks the court to daclare thia a cese of contribution for clean-up costs rather
than joint and sevaral (lability.
! or Operater” Liabill

CERCLA lizbllity rests with “any person who at the time of dispasal of
any hazardous substance'™ ownad ar oparatad any facility!” at which such
hazardous substances were disposed of.” 42 U.S.C. 4 8607(a)(2). Present ownars
of facilities are also liuble as potentally responsible parties ("PRPs”) "withowt

showing that they owned the propetty at the time of the release or that they

cantributed to the polluted conditions at the site.” Willlam H. Rodgers, Jr,

Environmental Law: Hezardoua Wastes and Substances, vol. 4, § B.12 at 668-69

*The term "hozardous substance” under CERCLA encompasses all
substances and pollutants designated as high risk under other ¢nvironmental
laws, such as the Clean Air and Water Acts, the Solid Waste Dispeosal Act, and
the regulations. 42 U.B.C. § 9601(14}); 40 C.R.R. § 302.

742 U,S.C. § 9601(9) formally defines 3 "facllity" as a building, structure,
site, or ares "whare a hazardous substance has bean deposited, stored,
disposed or, or plaged, or otherwisa come to be located.”

13
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(1992): 42 U.S.C. § 9B07(8)(4).* PCBs are hazardous substance within the meaning
of 42 U.S.C. § 9610(14) and 40 C.F.R. § 302.

Tha terms "owner” and "oparator" go mostly unclerified In CERCLA,

which was the product of brisk legisiativa negotiations in 1980, On first glance,

ownership seems an gasy question In this case. for Fisher Conirols owned all of tha

atock In New MDCC for six years and on two brlef accasions eiso owned the
property upon which New MDCC sat. Courts have not applied owner and opsrator
liabillty quite so broadly, howaver, and so the plaintiffs must come forth with
rvidence which meets one or more of many teste fer determining whother Fisher
Controls was an owner of aparator under CERCLA, The following subsactions
dlsguss those tests and thelr applicationsg to this case.
8. Record Tirle 10 Broparmy

Generally, one who owned racord title to a facllity and property when
hazardous substances were dispasad of on that property is llable as an awner under
CERCLA.* However, CERCLA doss not extend so far as to Impose liability an those

who hava merely taken brief record title 1o a facility a3 a conduit in an acquisitlon.

®Current owners are strictly liable without regard to causation. New York
v, Shora Realty Corp., 768 F.2d 1032, 1044-1045 (2d Cir. 1985) (to interpret
the law otharwise "would open e huge loophole In CERCLA's coverage. Itis
quite clear that if the current owner of a site could avoid liability merely by
having purchaaed the site after chemical dumping had ceased, waste sites
certainly would bs sold, following the cessation of dumping, to new owners
who could avaid the liability otherwise required by CERCLA,"}

*The defendants have rot arguad thot they era not liable under CERCLA
becauss ne PCBs wers released into the environment during the periad that
they sllcgedly "owned or operated” New MDCC,

14
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See John §. Bovd Co. v. Boston Gag Co., 882 F.2d 401, 407 n. 1B {1st Cir, 1933)

(parent acting merely as intetmadiate holder not lisble under CERCLA as succosaor

corporation); Robertshaw Conteals Co. v, Waits Ragulator Co,, BO7 F. Supp. 144,
150 (D, Me. 1592} (refusing 10 Impose owner liability under CERCLA on tha basis of

2 ane-day period of title possession during 8 Twa-step selas transaction), In this
caee, Fisher Controls had record title to the Old MDCC property for one day In 1975,
and to the New MDCC property for two months in late 1981 and early 1982. Fisher
Contrals claims that the court should find that this ownership did net suffice to make
Flsher Controls a CERCLA-liable party. But a5 discussed below, Fisher Controls did
not act merely 85 & conduit during or in betwasn these inatances of record
pwnership, &nd 8o the issue of whather it was 8 CERCLA-liable ownaer shall go to
trial.
b._Elercing the Corporate Veil

The malerity of federal appellate courts hu\? declared that CERCLA does
not impose "ownar"® lisbllity on a parent company of a whally-owned curpa[atldn that
disposed of hazardous wastes simply because of stock ownership, Jacksonville Elec,
Authority v. Barnuth Corp,, 898 F.2d 1107, 1110 (11th Cir, 1993), United States v,
Kavsar-Roth Corp,, 910 F.2d 24, 27 [1a1 Cir. 1860}, gert. donled, 498 U.S. 1084
(1891} Joslyn Mfq. Co. v, T.L. James & Co.. 893 F.2d 80, B2 {Bth Cir. 1890), gert.
duniud, 498 U.S. 1108 (1991); Courts rarely hold A parant company or Individual
stackholder llable ss en "éwner" under CERCLA unless the plaintiff can prove that

corperate formalities heve not besn observed 5o that the court should "plerce the

1B
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corporata vell." E.g., Lansford-Coaldale Jolnt Water Authotity v, Tonelli Corp,, 4
F.3d 1208, 1220 (3d Cir. 1993); Joglyn Mfg,, 893 F.2d at 82. In order to veil-

plerce, courts musr cansider: (1) whether the subsidiary fsiled to maintaln adequate
caplialication; {2) whether tha parent and subsidiary intermingled properties or
accounts or failed to observe curporate formalltles end separataness; (3) whather the
parent siphoned funds from the subsidiary; and {4) whelher the parent exerclsed
pervasiva and actual control over the subsidiary.'® Kalser v, Roth, 724 F. Supp. 185,
20 (D.R.l. 1889, aff'd 910 F.2d 24. Of these factors, the plaintiffs have enly
provided evidence of Flsher Contrals’ control over New MDCC, and the plaintiffs have
corractly daclined to argue that this court ehould pierce tha corporate veil under these
clrcumstancas.

However, the principles of limited liability do not eomplately constrain
CERCLA; Arst v, Ploefiners Welfare Educ. Fund. 28 F.3d 417 (7th CIr. 1894); and a
perent corporation can be found liable as an “owner” when courts find reason 1o
deem it @ successor corporation, and as an "operator” when the parent exercised
particularlzed control avor the subsidiaty, Cf. id. The plaintiffs have asserted that

Fisher Contrals Ie subject to both types of liability in this case.

radaral common law applies to vell-plercing questions in CERCLA ocases,
but Wiscensin vell-piercing considerations parollel the federal comman law.
See Consumer Co-op of Walworth County v, Olsan, 419 N.W.2d 211 (Wis.
1B88).
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First, tha plaintitts contend that when Fisher Controls acquired Old
MDCC, it scquired Qld MDCC's llabili‘ties. Generally, when a corporation acquires tha
assets of another, it does not acquira Itg IIublllmes. However, whan, tor example, the
acquisition |s deemed a gde facto merger, suctessor liability applles. Fisher Contrals’
acquisition of Qld MDCC and ¢reation of New MDCC did not lollow the requirements
of a de jure merger, but the plaintiffs argue thet Fisher Controls’ acquisitiun shouild be
considered a dq facto merger and Fisher Controls should be held lisble for the
conduct of Old MDCC as if It wers a merger de jurg. See. c.g., HBW Sys. v,
Washington Gas Light Co,, 823 F, Supp. 318, 334-36 (D. Md. 1893). The de¢ facto
merger concapt "is a judicially creatad vehicle that courts sometimes use to traat an
sssets acqulsiton as if it were & merger. . . . in larga maasure, application depends:
on hm& a courl views both the facts and the equities of an individual situation.”

Larry D, Scderquist & A.A. Sommer, Jr. Understanding Corporation Lew, at 241-42
{1990} (footnote omitted),

In this case, Fisher Controls creeted what commentators call a "three-
cornared” or "trlangular” merge by forming o subsidiary end then having tha target
eorporation (Old MDCC) merge into the subsidlary (New MDCC), with the
sharaholders of Old MDCC recelving stock In fMenganto (the parant’s parent) in
exchange for Old MDCC’s business and assers. Seq ld, Howesver, tixat does not
mean that corporaly fornulities should automatically be eschewed and & da a8t

merger declared. The elements this court must consider in enelyzing allsgations of a

17
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da tactg merger are: (1) continuation of the entarprise by the acquliring corporation;
(2) eontinuity of shareholders; (3] dissolution of the selling corporation; and (4)
. assumption of oparating liabllities by the purchasing corporation. |d.; Hunt's
Generstor Comm. v, Babcock & Wlicox Cq,, 863 F. Supp. 879, 883 (E.D. Wis.
1994). In CERCLA cases, courts may also consider applylng succesasor liabliity whan
the corporate structure was created as an attempt 10 continue the business of a
cempany without taking on its environmental fiabilitles. U.S, v, Caroling Trensformer
Co,, 978 F.2d 832 (4th Cir, 1992),

The plaintiffs argue that Fisher Controls’ acquisition of Old MDCC fits
these elements because: (1) Fisher Controls crested New MDCC to continue the
| business with nearly the seme personnel as Old MDCC; (2} Old MDCC's shareholders
; suld their shares In Old MDCC for Monsante (Fisher Cantrols® parent) stack; (3) Qld
MDCC dissolved; and (4) New MDCC afsumed the operating liabliities of Qld MDCC.
The defendants contend that the plaintiffs misconsirue the de_(gcto merger theory In
this case by ignoring the separate corporate identities of Fisher Controls and New
MDCC. However, as discussed balow, the question of whether or not Fisher Controls
"continuad™ the activities at New MDCC or New MDCC conducted thoae activities
independently is 8 quastion of fact to be resolved at triel, and tha sourt shall not
dismiss the da facta merger theory of liability on summary judgmant.

d. Operator Liabliity
A parent company which actually controis the operations of a subsidlary

is derivatively responsible as a parent corporation "operator” under CERCLA.

i8
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Lansford-Coaldale, 4 F.3d 1208; Kayser-Both, 810 F.2d 24; Shore Realty, 759 F.2d
1032; gf. Arst, 25 F.3d 417 (individual stockholder). Courts of appeals ate divided
avar whather authority to control, rather than the exercise of that autherity, ls
sufficlent. Compare Donahey v, Bogls, 987 F.2d 1250, 1264 (6th Cir. 1993),
vacated on another issue, 114 §. Ct. 2668 (1834) [sola shareholdar’s autharity to
control sufficient); Carolina Transformer, 878 F.2d 832 (declining to exercise control
should not be rewarded when authority exists); with Lansford-Coaldale, 4 F.3d 1221
(actual substantial control necessary); Keyser, 910 F.2d 24 (same). The Court of
Appeals for tha Seventh Ciroult has not et forth 2 test for a parent company’s
operator libility for its subsidiary’s CERCLA wrongdolngs. In & case in which it
found that a corporate officer could be personally liable under CERCLA, it applied an
“actual control” grandard, énd In fact, Indicated that the control nesdad to be over
huzard itself, and not meraly over the corporation. Arsi, 25 F.3d 417. The
distinguishing factor in this ﬁsa is thut the defendant is a parent corporation and not
an individual sharaholder, and this court adapts the malority view Lhal a parent’s
"operator™ contral includes contrel over non-anvironmental daily operations. E.q.,
Kayser, 910 F.2d 24, Nevertheless, the plsintiffs heve established enough evidence
to maat thelr burden under clther test. For Instance, while Wheelor was the general
manager—chosen by 8 New MDCC board comprised of Flshar Controls

officers —Fishar Cantrnis bacame actively invalved in supervising non-PCB related
safety measures. Figsher Controls was net merely 2 dumping point for financial

reports, as Fisher Controls would like the court to find. Fisher Controls personnel

19
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required anvironmantal ¢coet reports and waste disposel Information, and Fisher
Controls required that New MDCC ask for approval before making a certain level of
capital expenditura. Onca Whaeler died and Fisher Controls sent ite own persennel
manager. Rogers, 10 8¢t as New MDCC gp:neral manager, Rogers took on tha
raspansibility Tor the dslly operations at Naw MDCC. He dealt with labor, disposal of
the barrals of PCB, the sale to Slyman Industries, and, as he put i1, "the bottam line.”
Rogers sant PCB-removal stetus reports to Fisher Controls. Rugers Indicared In
depositions that he falt that Flshar Controls was still his boss, and he expressed his
frustration with the lack of assistance he cncountersd from Fisher Controls regarding
tha PCB remavai and New MDCC sale, Suess told Rogers thet the property might be
f:antaminated with PCBs, but Flsher Controls did nothing. Theee faets are enough to
foreclose summary Judgmant in this case.
L din

Fisher Controls Insists that Theresa Slyman and Slyman Industries do not
have standing to maintain a CERCLA contribution or cos\ recovery action because the
only reaponse cost they have incurred was 410,260 in expert witness fees for Robert
Parsons. See Kay Tronig Corp. v, United States, 114 S. Ct. 1960, 1967 (1994}
{costs incurrad to pursue Jitigation agolnst other aliegadly_rl responslble parties are not
recoverable response costs under CERCLA). However, Tharesa Slyman and Slyman
Industrles swora thet they hired Mr, Parsons for a dusl purpose—to provide expart
testimony a4 10 investigate, assess, and avaluste the extant of the PCB

contaminatien and recommend future appropriate activities consistent with a Nutional
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Contingency Plan. The court accepts this assertion and rcjects Fisher Controls’
standing argumant,

Finally, Fisher Controls argues that New MDCC and the Slymans are
polentially responslble parties (PRP8) themselves, and tharefore cannot 3ssert @ cost
recovery claim geeking 8 declaration that Fisher Controis is jointly and severally liable
for &ll response costs under sec. 9607(a}, but must instead bring their glaim against
Fisher Controls as a contribution action under 42 U,S.C. § 9613, Undar sec.
9607(a), aw.nars and aperators arc jolntly and sevarally lisble for, jnter alia, all
"necessary costs of responsgs incurred by eny . . . parsen consistent with the national
contingancy plan.” In contrast, cec, 9813(f) allows any person to "seek contribution
from any other persan wha Is llabla or potentlally liable™ under CERCLA "during or
following™ any clvil action on liability, and then the court parcels out tha liability.
Generally, a cuntribution action takes place after @ jointly and severally (iable party
has discharged Ita lisbility and seeks to recover from anether jointly and severally

liable party an appropriate share of the payment the first has been compalled to

maka, Akzo Coatings v. Aigner Corp,, 30 F.3d 761, 764 (7th Cir. 1934); accord
Northwest Airlines, Inc. v. Transporg Workars Unlon, 451 U.S. 77, 87-88 (1881).
Thus, when a CERCLA-lisble party who has baen compellad by the EPA to remediate
sues annther allagedly liable p'artv to racover a pro rata partion of the remediation
costs, the actlon must be brought as & contribution action under CERCLA, 42 U.S.C,

§ 9613, not as a cost recovery action under §.89607. Akzo Coatings, Inc. v, Algner
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Sara, 30 F.3d ex 784 Linhad Teachnalaoles Cars. v, Brovwning-Farris Iodus.. 33 . Sa

96, 100 {151 Cir. 1904), gprt, denled, 115 S. Ct. 1176 (1998); United States v.
- Colorado & Eastaen A.R,, 26 Envil.L.Rep. 20,308, 20,311 (10th Cir. 1984); Amogo
DIl Co. v. Borden, Inc., 8BS F.2d 664, 672 (6th Cir. 1988}

Howaevar, this case falls "nutsida tha statutory parameters establishsd
i for an exprass cause of action for contibution.” United Technalnglas, 33 F.3d 86,
99 n.B. New MDCC and the Slymans are PRPs who have “spontaneously Initlata{d] a
cleanup without govommer;tal prodding," |d. The United States Suprems Court has
| expigined thet CERCLA "sxpressly authorizes a cause of action for cantrlbution in
[§ 9613] and implledly authorizes a similar and sermewhat averlapping remedy In
[§ 9607)." [d. The Court of Appeals for the First Clrcult further explains that in the
event the private-action plalntiff (tself Is potentially “liable" to the EPA for response
costs, and thus |§ akin to a joint ‘tortteasor,’ gection 3607(s)(4)(E) serves ag the pre-
snforcement analog to the ‘Impleadar’ contribution action permitted under saction
9813(f)." inre Hemingway Transp.. InG.. 993 F.2d 915, 931 (1st Cir.), can. denled.
114 S, Ct. 303 (1993), Thus, the plaintiffs have pursued an implied right of action
for contribution under 42 U.S.C. § 9607(c). See United Technologies, 33 F.3d at 99,
ns.

Contrary to the partigs’ contentions, tho fact that the court finds that

the plaintiffe have brought thelr action pursuant te a right Implled by sec, 9607 does
‘ not resolve tha raal disagreement--whathar this actlon is ana for a declaration that

Fisher Controls Is liable to the plalntlffs for propertlonate contributlon or jeintly and
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swa‘rauy liable for all coste of remediation. A finding thet Fisher Controls was an
“owner or operator” under CERCLA wﬁutd meke It |ointly anrd savorally liable for all
costs of remediation incurred by an innocent party, But whan PRPs, such as the
plaintiffs in this case, sue under aa implied right of contribution, that is exactly what

they are antitied 1o get If thay win. Thus, If this court finds Fishar Controls liable as

_ an "owner or operalor”, the liabllity Is for contributlon, at least as to the plainuffs in

this case,

Two policy issues also direct the court in this case, The plaintiffs argue
that they should be rewarded for their "spontansous” clsan-up action by getting a full
recovary-of-costs rather than pro rata Enntribution claim. However, the plaintiffs are
not CERCLA-innocent parties. When the Slymans bought New MDCC, they knew
that Old MDCC had used PCBs and that New MDCC nesded to disposa of them, and
This presumably factored into the price they ﬁald for tha company. Thay have known
since 1983 that at least four areas of the property were contaminated, and thay have
suspected far-reaching contamination. Now they seek a declaration of Habliity
against Fisher Controls to ameliorate the minimal past costs and the potentially hugs
future costs of clean-up. Thay have Initiated a preamptive stilke, and thers is no
reasan to put thom In o batter position than o eompany who is under a consent
decrea to clean up hazardous wasta, Further, even if the court were ta allow the
plaintiffs 1o seek full cast recovery, Fisher Contrals would likely bring & contribution

clalm Bgelnat the plaintiffs aftar incurring all expansas. CERCLA [s already legendary

a3
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for the businass It creates for lawyers, and tho court sees no reason to drag out this
lltigation any more than necessary.

£._MOYION TO SUPPLEMENT THE RECORD

The plaintiffs have moved 16 supplamant tha record on summary
judgment with an affidavit of Gregory Slyman attaching laners and mamoranda gent
between former New MDCC gensral manager, John Wheeler, and Fisher Controls
meanagement ragarding organizatlonal charts end persennel promotions and transfers.
Tha plaintiffs offered these documents es an indlcation thet Wheeler needed to ger
approval from Flsher Controls to make persoenncl changas. The defendants protest
that these documants should be excluded as prejudicial because they waera offered
aftar tha discovery deadling passed (and thus after any witnegses could be deposed
on them) and after full briefing on summary judgmant. Further, they contend that
Slyman has fulled to pravide a sufficlent foundation and authenticatian for the
documents. Gregory Slyman simply states: "On March 29, 19985, | reviewed a
folder of documents discovered by Rebert Smits, the comptruller at MDCC. This
folder contained organizational charts of Fisher Cantrols’ and MDCC’s Intrastructure .
.« . Mr. Smits Informed me that he located the folder . . . In a drawer of inactive
parsonngl files™ whila he wag searching for another personnal file. (Slyman Aff.
1§ 3-4.)"" The court has alreudy ruled that the issue of "control” will go to trlal

without relying on these lettars. The documents shall be allowed at caourt trial,

""The plaintiffs hava not replied to Fisher Contrels’ oppesition to their
motion to supplement the record.
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howaver, and the court shall accord them the welght they merit, taking into
consideration the manner and time in which thoy were diseavered and submitted.
il _CONCLUSION

Therafora, Figher's motion for summary [udgment against the plaintiffs’
stata law claims la GRANTED, and the state law t;laims are DISMISSED; Flsher's
motion for summary judgmant against tha plaintiffs’ CERCLA claims undar 42 U.S.C.
§ 9807(c) Is DENIED, but its motlon to fmit those clalms to contributory liability
rather than Joint and severai ligbility is GRANTED. Further, the plalntiffs’ meotion to

supplement tha record 1s GRANTED.

50 ORDERED this ,2354? of #_m, 1996,

John W. Raynold
nited States District Judge
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OUNITED STATES DISTRICT CCURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

" Chambers of
JUDGE JOHN W, REYNOLDS

Mr. Richard Sankovitsz

296 Federal Building
Milwaukea, Wisg. 53202

Attorney at Law Telephone:(414) 297-3188
111 E. Wisconsin Avenue, #2100
Milwaukee, WI 53202 May 5, 1995
Mr. Carmen D. Caruso Mr. Michael Ash
Attorney at Law : Attorney at Law
30 N. LasSalle Street, #3000 780 N. Wateyr Street
Chicago, IL 60602 ' Milwauvkee, WI 53202
' . ew R. Running .
Dear Counsel: Mr. Andrew nning .

Attorney at Law
200 B. Randolph Drive
Chicago, IL 60601
R,{?.: Caae ND- 93“C""325
Milwaukee Die Casting v. Fisher Controls

Subject: cancellation of court trial

The court trial , referred to above,

which was scheduled at 10:00 a.m. on May 10, 1995

has been removed from the court calendar for said day -

[xx1 at the request of _the court

i- [ because of a conflict on the couvrt 'calenda;:'.

[xx1 _The hearing will be rescheduled at a later date

Sincerely,

LoD

Rita Zverd, Deputy Clerk

May 10 1995
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and
THERESA A. SLYMAN

Plaintitfs,
No. 93-C-0325

Y.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
INC,,

Judge Reynolds

R e S e T S S

Defendant.

STIPULATION AND AGREED MOTION TO BIFURCATE TRIAL AND TO
LIMIT LIABILITY TRIAL TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT RECORD

Pursuant to Local Rule 6.07 and Fed.R.Civ.P, 42(b} and 56(d), the plaintiffs, Milwaukee
Die Casting Co., Slyman Industries, Inc. and Theresa A. Slyman, and defendant Fisher Controls
International, Inc., by their respective attorneys, jointly move to bifurcate the trial in this cause
on the issues of liability and damages and fo limit the "liability trial™ fo evidence which the
parties have respectively submitted in support of and in opposition to the defendant's pending
motion for summary judgment on counts I, I and [T of the Amended Complaint. In support,
the Plaintiffs and Defendant state:

1. Plaintiffs have filed an Amended Complaint alleging three claims for declaratory
relief against Fisher under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act fCERC_LA). In essence, Plaintiffs seek a declaratory judgment that Defendant is
liable for response costs which have been and will be incurred in remediating the presence of

PCBs at the Milwaukee Die Casting Company (MDCC) facility in Milwaukee, WisconsirL.




2. Defendant has answered the Amended Compla'mt, denying liability. Defendant
has also filed a motion for summary judgment on counts I, IT and III of the Amended Complaint
(the "Motion"). The Motion is now fully briefed.! The Motion addresses the questions of
whether Fisher is liable under CERCLA §§ 107 (a)(1), 107(a)(2) and/or 113(f) under various
claimed facts and legal theories which the parties have fully briefed in support of and in
opposition to the Motion (the "Liability Issues").

3. The Liability Issues raised in Motion are threshold issues in this CERCLA action.
If those issues are decided in favor of Plaintiffs, the Court would then be asked to decide damage
issues such as whether or not plaintiffs' claimed response costs are recoverable under CERCLA
as well as equitable allocation issues ("Damage Issues™). On the other hand, if the Liability
Issues are decided in favor of Defendant -- either on the Motion or at trial -- the Damage Issues
would be moot,

4. In the interests of judicial economy, and pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 42(b), the
parties move joiniiy to bifurcate the Liability and Damage Issues in this case. Hydrate Chem.
Co. v. Calumet Lubricants Co,, 47 F.3d 887, 890 (7th Cir. 1995). Courts have recognized that
bifurcation of CERCLA cases into liability and damages phases is appropriate. E.g., Amoco Oil
Co. v. Borden, Inc., 889 F,2d 664, 667 (5th Cir. 1989) (“Because of the complexity of

CERCLA cases . . . couris have bifurcated the liability and remedial, or damages, phases of

' Defendant has also filed a separate motion for summary judgment on the state law

claims in the original complaint which also remains pending at this time. That motion should
not be confused with the Motion that is addressed to the CERCLA claims in counts I, II and 111
of the Amended Complaint which is the subject of this instant motion.




CERCLA litigation."); United States v. Wade, 653 F. Supp. 11, 15 (E.D. Pa. 1984) (bifurcating
CERCLA action between liability and damages: "[A] finding of no Lability would obviate the
need for any evidence on costs incurred, resulting in an obvious saving of ﬁﬁe and expense for
all parties,"),

5. The parties jointly submit that bifurcation is particularly appropriate in this case
because, in submitting their respective evidence (including exhibits and deposition testimony) in
support of and in opposition to the Motion, the parties have developed a complete record on the
Liability Issues in this CERCLA action. For example, on the Liability Issue of whether or not
Defendant is liable as a “successor corporation” as a result of an alleged de facto merger, the
parties agree that there are no questions of material fact and that the issue may be decided as a
question of law. Likewise, on the Liability Issues of whether or not Defendant was an "owner”
or “operator” of the MDCC facility from 1975 to 1982, the parties agree that the legal issues
predominate over factual issues. Moreover, the Court may fully, prOpeﬂy and fairly adjudicate
any limited factual questions relating to those issues under the trial standard of the preponderence
of the evidence based on the exhibits and deposition testimony which the parties have respectively
submitted. -

6. Therefore, Plaintiffs and Defendant jointly move pursuant to Fed.R. Civ. P. 56(d)
that any "trial” on the Liability Issues in this CERCLA action should be restricted to the
evidence (including exhibits and deposition testimony) which the parties have submitted in

support of or opposition to the Motion. This motion is intended to permit the Court to adjudicate

3




ihe Liability Issues based on a record consisting of the briefs, factual submissions and evidence

which the parties have already submitted in connection with the Motion.

7. Limiting the first trial to the CERCLA Liability Issues, and restricting tha trial

to the summary judgment record, should promote the prompt and efficient resolution of what

appears to the parties to be primarily a dispute of law. An early resolution of that dispute is in

the interests of both parties. In the event that the Court holds that Defendant is liable under

CERCLA, the parties will be in a betler position to try the remaining Damage issues after further

site investigation work is performed and further discussions are held with the responsible

regulatory authorities. On the other hand, in the event that the Court holds that Defendant is not

hable under CERCLA, the Damages Issues will be moot.

Dated -1 , 1995,

o

//. ‘/-/ —
/ /z Yoo A Cllieeat

Respectfully submiitted,

L}?ﬂt/((&ﬁ //@4/ ’

One of the attorneys for Plaintiffs
Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman

~ Industries, Inc., and Theresa A. Siyman

James R. Figliulo

Carl A. Gigante

Carmen . Caruso

FORAN & SCHULTZ

30 North LaSalle Street, Ste. 3000
Chicago, Illinois 60602

(312) 368-8330

One of the attorneys for Defendant
Fisher Conirels International, Inc.

Michael Ash

GODEREY & KAHN, S.C.
780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500
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Richard J. Sankovitz '
WHYTE HIRSCHBOECK DUDEK, S.C.
111 East Wisconsin Avenue '
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202-4894
(414) 273-2100

{Inquiries May Be Directed To Mssts. Figlinte
or Caruso)

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS

200 East Randolph Drive

Chicago, Illinois 60601
(312) 861-2000

(Inquirié_s May Be Directed To Mr. Ash)







UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., SLYMAN
INDUSTRIES, INC. and THERESA A. Case No. 93 C Q325

‘SLYMAN,

' Judge Reynolds
Plaintiffs,

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
INC., '

Defendant.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S
OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO SUPPLEMENT RECORD

IHTRODUCTIQR

Plaintiffs did not produce the documents attached to
their Motion to supplement the record in accordance with the
requirenents of Local Rule 7.07,; nor did they produce the
documents in response to Fisher'’s discovery requests. Instead,
after fact discovery has been closed for over two months, and
after briefing of Fisher’s dispositive motion was concluded, they
requast the Court to "supplement" the record with "newly
discovered" documents pased on the secend-hand affidavit of
George Slyman’s son -- a person with no personal knowledge of the
documents who digd hot even "discover" them himself. Plaintiffs’
claim that their attempt to include theée ddcuments in the record
is Ywithout prejudice to Fisher" is absurd because nons of the

witnesses the parties deposed were afforded the opportunity to

testify about these documents,




[ I

e —
Secondly, plaintiffs‘ assertion that the belatedly-
produced documents "buttress" their position that Fisher was an
cperator of the MDCC facility under CERCLY is erronecus. This

Court should deny plaintiffs’ motion to supplement the. record.

ARGUMENT

I. v“gupplementing®” The Record With The Belatedly-Produced
Pocuments Would Prejudice Fisher.

Local Rule 7.07 provides that plaintiffs must produce
within thirty days of being served with an answer "eaéh and every
document or report" that plaintiffs contend supports their
claims. Plaintiffs did not produce the documents attached to
their Motion to Supplement the Record within thirty days of being
served with Fisher‘s answer. 1Indeed, plaintiffs did not produce
the documents to Fisher until after fact discevery in this case
was closed, and until after the conclusion of all fact
depositiong in the case.

Contrary to plaintiffs’ suggestion, Fisher would he
prejudiced by plaintiffs’ attempt to use those documents now in
opposition to Fisher’s motiaon for summary judgment. Fisher did
not have access to these documents during fact discovery and, in
particular, Fisher did not have the opportunity to explore the
relevance of these documents, if any, during the depositions of
the fact witnesses. Use of the documents now in oppositicn to
Fisher’s motion for summary judgment plainly would prejudice

Fisher.




Vs ]

g N

IX. There Is Neither Adequate Justification For The Belated

Production of These Documents, Nor Adequate Foundation For
Their Use.

Gregory Slyman’s affidavit indicates only that Robert
smits told Slyman that he located a folder containing the
documents "when he was searching for another perscnnel file at
the MDCC facility." Apparently, neither Slyman nor Smits
prepared, sent, or received, or otherwise have any knowledge of
any of these documents which all appear to be at least 14 years
old. The affidavit does not specify when Smits allegedly found
the documents, nor does it set forth any good reason why such
documents were not discovered and provided to Fisher many months
ago.

Fisher objects to conzideration of these documents in
conitection with the pending summary Jjudgment motions on the
following grounds: (1) They were not timely produced in response
to discovery requests and no sufficient excuse for such
nonproduction is present; (2) They are not properly identified or
authenticated under Fed. R. Evid. 90l: (3) They contain
inadmissible hearsay. See Fed. R, Evid. 802:; and (4) The
Affidavit of Gregory Slyman does not comport with the
requirements of Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 56(e).

III. The Belatedly-Prodiuced GDocuments Do Not “Buttress?”
Plaintiffs’ Claims That Fisher Owned The MDCC Facility Under
CERCLA.

Even if this Court were to consider the documents

plaintiffs have belatedly produced, those documents do not




s

support plaintiffs’ assertion that Fisher "operated® the.MDCC
facility. ©Plaintiffs refer to the documents apparently in an
effort te show that Fisher exercised control over the day-to-day
operations of MDCC. However, the documents, on their face, belie
plaintiffs’ clains.

The documents show that MDCC’s John Wheeley, not
Fisher, planned personnel changes at MDCC and made his own
decisions regarding employee responsibilities and compensation.
Further, the February 22, 1980 memo from John Wheeler to Dennis
Blanchard shows that Wheeler’s employees at MDCC had direct
responsibility for all aspects of MDCC’s daily operations,
including manpower, machines, maintenance and manufacturing.
Although plaintiffs construe these documents to show the need for
Fisher “approval" (Motion to Supplement at 94), there is no
evidence of record indicating that Fisher’s approval was
necessary, nor 1is there evidence that Fisher ever overruled any
of Mr. Wheeler’s decisions relating to his own emplovees’
positions or compensation.

As Fisher pointed out in its Reply brief, plaintiffs
made no effort in thelir opposition to Fisherfs motion for summary
judgment to rebut Fisher‘s evidence that MDCC’s local management
was responsible for the day-to-day operations of MDCC. (Fisher
Reply at 9). Rather, plaintiffs relied exclusively on Fisher’s
alleged Yenvironmental® contacts with MDCC in support of their

assertion that Fisher operated MDCC. (Fisher Reply at 10).




T~

NS

Plaintiffs’ helatedly-produced documents fall far short of

showing that Fisher exercised the requisite control over MDCC’s

daily operations necessary to hold Fisher liable as an “operator®

under CERCLA,

Dated this 10th day of April, 1995.

DIRECT INQUIRIES TO:
Michael Ash
(414) 273-3500

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIOMNAL,
INC.

S MNMidnssl By C

By One of Its Attorneys

Michael Ash

GODFREY & KAHN, S.C.

780 North Water Street
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS

200 East Randolph-Brive
Chicago, Illineis 60601
{312) 861-2000
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I caused the foregoing Fisher
Controls International, Inc.‘s Opposition to Motion to Supplement
Record to be served on the following personis] by First Class
Mail on the date set forth below:

Carmen D. Caruso

Foran & Schultz

30 North LaSalle Street
Suite 3000

Chicago, IL 60602

Richard J. Sankovitz

Whyte Hirschboeck Dudek, S.C.
111 East Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 2100

Milwaukes, Wisconsin 53202

Dated: April 10, 1995 17724C(/éf{£/(6/({ '

Michael Ash
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., SLYMAN

INDUSTRIES, INC. and THERESA A. Case No. 93 C 0325
SLYMAN,

Judge Reynolds
Plaintiffs,

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATICNAL,
INC.,

Defendant.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, INC.’S RESPONSE
TO PLAINTIFFS® MOTICN FOR LEAVE TO FILE SURREPLY

Plaintiffs pove for leave to file a "surreply.”
Although Fisher denies the facts and disagrees with the arguments
that premise this request, Fisher does not object to the Court’s
considering plaintiffs’ surreply. However, Fisher reguests that
the Court also consider the following with respect to the
Surreplyfs accusation that Fisher misrepresented to Fhis Court

the facts and holdings of two cases, John §. Boyd, Inc. ¥. Baston

Gas Co., 992 F.2d 401 (ist Cir. 1993) and In re Acushnet River &

New Bedford Harbor, 712 F. Supp. 1010 (D. Mass. 1989).

Plaintiffs are wrong. Nowhere in its Reply does Fisher
state that the transaction at issue in Boyd was identical te the

transaction at issue in this case.! Nor does it need to be.

! The description of the Boyd transaction contained in the
District Court’s opinion is only an excerpt of the SEC
descriptions and does not provide all of the details of the
transaction. John Bovd Co. v. Roston Gas Co., 1892 U.S5. Dist.
LEXIS 13088, #8 (D). Mass. Aug. 18, 1992). However, the First

{continued...)

<
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The relevant conclusion reached by the First Circuit in Boyd was
that, however the transaction was structured, the sffect of the
transaction was that NEES, the parent, first acquired Lynn Gas
and then, in a szecond step executed on the same day, sold Lynn
Gas to its wholly-owned subsidiary, Boston Gas:
Technically, NEES sold the Lynn Gas Co. first to
Eastern Gas and Fuel Assocdiateés, the parent cowmpany of
Boston Gas. Eastern then so0ld Lynn Gas on the same

day.

John S. Boyd, 992 F.2d at 407 n.5. The Boyd court held that

NEES's actions ag an intérmediary in the transaction did not
alter "any liability" in the case. Id. (emphasis added).
Fisher’s Reply states precisely that conclusion; nothing more,
nothing less. ({Fisher Reply at 4-5) |
Plaintiffsf accusation that Fisher misrepresented the

facts and holding of In re Acushnet also is without basis.

First, it w%s plaintiffs that initially cited the Acushnet case
without acknowledging the c¢ritical distinction recognized in that
case bhetween a parent’s derivative liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary’fs successor liability. Second, the facts stated in
Fisher’s reply are precisely as they are stated in Acushnet. RTE
inéorporated Aerovox as a wholly-owned subsidiary in preparation

for the acquisition (just as Fisher incorporated "new MDCCY

T (...continued)
Circuit, which undoubtedly had the details of the transactlon
avallable to it, concluded that the effect of the transaction was
NEES first acquiring Lynn Gas and then, in a second transaction,
selling it to Boston Gas. JBoyd, 992 F.2d at 407 n.5.
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here). 1In re Acushnet, 712 F. Supp. at 1012. Later, three

parties - - RTE, Aercvox (the newly incorporated subsidiary), and
Belleville ~ - all entered into an agreement (as did Fisher, “new
MDCC, " and "old MDCC* here) that resulted in Aeroveox receiving
Bellevilile’s assets (as “"new MDCC!" received ¥old MDCC!s" assets
here). Id. Aerovox, the subsidiary, not RTE, carried on the
business enterprise of the seller, Belleville ({just as "new
MDCC," not Fishey, carried on the business of “old MDCC"). Id.
Nowhere did the Acushnet court held, as plaintiffs
claim, that RTEfs role in the transaction was “"limited to
providing its stock as consideration for its subsidiary’s
(Aerovox’s) acquisition of Belleville’s assets and liabilities.®
(Plaintiffs’ Surreply at 4) Indeed, the court noted that "terms
of the agreement were somewhat complex." Id. Mdre important,
the Acushnet court made clear that because RTE's wholly-owned
subsidiary Aerovox acquired the assets of Belleville and was the
corporation that actually continued Belleville’s business, it was
Aerovox and not RTE that succeeded to Belleville’s liability:
Acquiring Belleville through a wholly-owned subsidiary
was an effective way for RTE to protect itself from
liability. The acquisition structure did not, however,
insulate Aerovox from siicceeding to Belleville's
liability.
Id. at 1017.
Both Acushnet and Boyd made clear that the “"successor

corporation® iz the corporation that actually acquires the assets

of the seller and continues the seller’s business enterprise.
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See alsg Atlantic Richfield Co. v. Blosenski, 847 F. Supp. 1261,

1292 (E.D. Pa. 1994). Plaintiffs do not dispute that it was "new
MbCCH that ultimately acquired the assets of "old MDCC,“.and that
it was "new MDCC, " not Fisher, that continued the business of
"old MODCC." Indeed, plaintiffs have admitted as much in their
Surreply: "New MRCC acquired old MDCC’s assets/liabilities

through Fisher.® (Plaintiffs’ Surreply at 4) (emphasis added)

E Although plaintiffs have theorized that "the purchasing
corporation cannot escape successor liability by subsequently
transferring its newly-acquired ‘enterprise’ to a subsidiary,"
(Plaintiffs’ Surreply at 5), they have failed to cite & single
case in support of this proposition.

Dated this 4th day of April, 1995.

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,
INC,

b3
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By One of Its Attorneys

Michael Ash
GODFREY & XAHN, S.C.
- 780 North Water Street
: Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202
(414) 273-3500

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS

200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, Illineois 60601
(312) 861-2000

DIRECT THQUIRIES TO:
Michael Ash
(414) 273-3500
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I caused the foregoing Fisher
Controls International, Ind.‘’s Response to Plaintiffs® Motion for
Leave to File Surreply to be served on the following person{s] by

facsimile transmission and by First Class Mail on the date set
forth below:

Carmen D. Caruso
Foran & Schultz

30 North LaSalle Strest
Suite 3000

Chicago, IL 60602

Richard J. Sankovitz

Whyte Hirschboeck Dudek, 5.C.
111 East Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 2100

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

- ,f-/’,‘_} b ‘ /} ’;/' ”
LA (VA
Dated: April 4, 1995 . }/&/ ’KZ’,& ;6

Michael Ash
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO.,
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and
THERESA A. SLYMAN

Plaintiffs,

V. Mo. 93-C-(325

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL,

Judge Reynolds
INC.,

T i i i

Defendant.
MOTION TO SUPPLEMENT THE RECORD
Plaintiffs, Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman Industries, Inc. and Theresa A, Slyman
(collectively "plaintiffs"), by their attorneys, for their Motion to Supplement the Record state as
follows:
1. On February 10, 1995, Fisher Controls International, Inc. ("Fisher"), moved for
summary judgment on Counts I, II and III of the Amended Complaint. Plaintiffs filed their

response and a statement of facts in opposition to summary judgment along with the exhibits

thereto on March 13, 1995,

2. Fisher filed its reply on March 27, 1995, Plaintiffs have moved this Court for

ieave to file a brief surreply.
3. On March 29, 1995, Gregory Slyman, the Vice President of Slyman Industries,
Inc., reviewed a folder of documents that was previously not known to have existed. Mr.
Slyman's Affidavit explaining the circumstances of this review is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
4, The folder included a letter dated February 22, 1980 from John Wheeler, MDCC's

general manager, to Fisher representative Dennis Blanchard, secking Fisher's authorization for

APR g7 1995
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proposed organizational changes at MDCC. In another letter, MDCC requested Fisher's
approval of new grade levels for employees and informed Fisher that "[pJosition descriptions to
document and support the new grade levels will be developed at your {Fisher's] request." An
apparently related handwriiten note requested Fisher's approval for salary increases.

5. These documents buttress plaintiffs' position that Fisher was an operator of the
MDCC facility under CERCLA. Copies of the pertinent documents are attached hereto as
Exhibit B,

6. Plaintiffs' attempt to include these documents in the record is made in good faith
and done without prejudice to Fisher. Copies of all of the materials in the file folder have been
forwarded to Fisher's étmmeys. |

WHEREFQRE, plaintiffs, Milwaukee Die Casting Co., Slyman Industries, Inc., and
Theresa A. Slyman, respectfully request this Court fo include the attached documents in the
record for consideration df Fisher's Motion for Summary Judgment.

Dated this f_’_l__ day of April, 1995,

|

Respectfully submitted,

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO., SLYMAN
INDUSTRIES, INC. and THERESA A. SLYMAN

P
By:é &W /i /5/_'2 :;ﬁi 2 . e

One of Their Attorneys

James R. Figlivlo

Carl A, Gigante

Carmen D, Caruso

FORAN & SCHULTZ

30 North LaSalle Street, Suite 3000
Chicago, lilinois 60602

(3[2) 368-8330 108 NowIngproe -
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

INTERNATIONAL, INC.

MILWAUKEE DIE )
CASTING CO. et al, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
)

v. } No, 93-C-0325
)
FISHER CONTROLS )]
)
)
)

Defendants.,

AFFIDAVIT OF GREGORY SLYMAN

Gregory Slyman, being duly sworn on oath, and under penalty of perjury, states
as follows:

1. lam currently and have been for the past three years the Vice President of
Slyman Industries, Inc., a Delaware Corporation with its principal place of business at
800 West Liberty Street, Medina, Ghio 44256.

2. In 1982, Slyman Industries purchased the stock of Milwaukee Die Casting
Company ("MDCC") from Fisher Controls International, Inc. ("Fisher").

3. On March 29, 1995, I reviewed a folder of documents discovered by
Robert Smits, the comptroller at MDCC. This folder contained organizational charts of
Fisher's and MDCC's intrastructure, and correspondence between MDCC and Fisher
related to MDCC's intrastructure, Copies of pertinent documents from this folder are

attached hereto and submitied as Exhibit B to plaintiffs' motion to supplement the record.

B, ‘.
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4. Mr. Smits informed me that he located the folder which contained Mr.
Wheeler's letter in a drawer of inactive personnel files. Mr. Smits stated that he
happened to see this folder when he was searching for another personnel file at the
MDCC facility. Until Mr. Smits advised me of this file's existence, I was not aware that
such a file existed.

5.  Ordinarily, MDCC does not keep organizational charts in its files that date
as far Back_ as fifteen years. Apparently, this file had been misplaced in the inactive
personnel drawer many years ago and has since gone undetected.

6. As soon as I reviewed these documents, I immediately turned them over to
my attorney Carmen D. Caruso of Foran & Schuliz,

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
Gregory Siyman

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before
me this 3rd day of Aprii, 1995.

'DFFTCTALSEAL
Linda M. Waschow :
Notary Public, State of Minols
b My Comnussmn Expilu 0600496

"NOTARY PUBLIC




|
I
|
. Yebruary 22, 1980

¥r. Desnde E. Blanchayd
Fishet Controla Compeny
P. 0. Box 190
Harghalitown, Iowa 50198

Subject: FProposed Orgsnieatfoual Changes at MDCC

Daer Dennia:

-

Duriang the past few months we hava discussed, in general
terms, several orgsnizstfonal changes I feel should be made at MDCC .
in order to mdequately support our increased level of shi’nrents om 2
three shift besia., Below I em listing the apecific changes I &m
reconmending in order o support our long term sales goalt

Hike Mathews, presently Production Control Managaz.

It ie recommended Mike be promoted ve & new position
entitled Production Superintendent. The purposs aof
this position is to support MDCC'e profit goals through
the usa of en effective Production Plan and to comcen—
trate on i.nprwins utilization of manpower, machines
and wapufacturing methods. In this capacity, all of
tha production foremen would report to Miks Nathews.

» In addition, our recent hire for Production Comtrol
work, Joseph Baldukas, would move into Hike's old
poeicion of Prodoction Comtrol Manager and report to him,
This umove would not only stremgthen our smanufacturing fune-
tion, but would also servea az a mapningful step in the
personal deavalopment pisn for' Hike Machewa.

#Hllfen Bowman, presently Pleat Superiucendent. .1 a=
recomsending Bill be nsmad to 2 new position entitled
Hsneger, Technical Servicea. Tha purpose of this positicn
ie to aupport the manufacturing goals of MDCC by managing
all manufacturing techonology and facilities planning.
Reporting to Bill in this position would be another new
position entitled Supervisor, Menufacturing Bnpineerimg, who
would be responsible for the tool voom and maintenance
department asctivities in addition to othar respoungibilities.
All of Bill Bowmsn'e goals iIn this new peaition would ba in
support of Mike Hathews in his new position. This would

B

ALL-STATE® INTERNATIONAL
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eusbls us to take full advsntage of Biil's nunur-

glcal kaekground and his extensive sxporience im the -

die casting indgstry. ' It vould cnsbla him ¢o devote hi.a
fall offort to the tecimical aspeess of our businezs
dnguring that we etay cdurrent with all nev technelogy -

as comparsd to his presont position where & meanimgful
ssowt of time wust be devoted to non-technicel matters.
B41l {0 axttencly compstent technically and I am confident
ia this sew eapacity he would be abls to make au even '
grestar coatrihucion to MDCC in the fuguze.

Yalrar snmr, pressatly Toolvoon Foreman. I @ recomnond-
ing Walt be prosoted to a nev positios entitled Sepervisor,
Menufusturing Engineering, The purpose of thia positicn is
to pyovide support for the Kanufseturing function by cnor-
dinating all tooiiag nctivivies to ensure sdequato tooling

to meat production requirements. Yo sddition, ke would be
regponsible for the teol room and malntemanes depavtment
sctivicies on o threw shift operacion bssie. Im this espacicy,
Ualt would report to Bill Bowman. This will enzbla B4l1l to
{mgare his koowvledge to Walt which, ia my opision, will be -
en {spottent part of bis developmsat for futurs wfututhg
Pmmmt ponicione. A8 indicatad above dm the purpese of
tha position, he would ba vespensible for tha mm:m
and commicacion of all gooling activivies botwesn the

: Tool Enginearing Dapartment (sl Suesa's growp) asd the
Hnau!mturins Department. I sinceraly believe this new L
funeedon or new position will contribute substanrislly to
haviog an affective three phift operation.

John Lexton, presently Die Coeting Voreman, cecond chift.

¥With the vativement of Las Bartel, a 44 yesr euployes, I

en proposing John ba proasted to a naw position entitled

General Foresan, Dic Casting Department, The purposs of this

poaition ia to support our producticn sad profit goals Wy

implementing our die casting production plem en a thrae .ehife

basie. In thie camity. John would evensfex to the fizat

ohifc sud all other die easting forauem om all ahifeo would |

Yaport to hinm, John would report to Niks Machews io his mew

vapecity of Production Superintendent. One of the rasl becefits

of this now position; in my opinton, will be ivproved mrém- '

tion batween the shifes ia the cesting deparement which I feel

will result in & more congdstent cupport of our productiom

end P.I. goals. Joho hae axhibited the lssdership qualil:ua,
judgoment and dedication to handle this additicnsl responsi-

bility. It will also setve ao an importsnt etep in Joha's

developoant for possible future menufecturing menagement

mitiﬂm .

Yaynerd Pribek, prasentiy Industrial Eagimest. 1 &m recos=msnd-
fug Maynerd ba promoted to Buparvisor, Industrial Enginesring.
The principal purpose of this position is to support our im-
cruased shipmont snd profit goals by affective msnagement
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ef ous s.uemaw ayaten end previding the mafeemm
expottise for the development snd implemestation of eus
, masufacturing coot system, Ha presantly supervises coe -
Tadustrisl Sngingers '& aubgeantial ssowmt of his tims
hubmnnduiﬂ.h nwzmmmmmw
. tazion of cur eost syatem. Bis contributiocn fn this aves
has, io @y cptuﬁa, Begn outerending. With cke zmum
af Tom Warphy, ﬁnm&vmpmue tho WOCBLEREY mtisuiw
for us ko Ecnw our sploncatation scheduls.

T am agtochivg @ current and & swisad mpamﬂ orgeaisacdon eham: withk
pogitica dqmipthm which T think will balp pur thess chsages in percpec—
tive. ¥e sra slsc forvardiag to. Joe. Xchlberg io Marshalltown fustifiestion
requeste, chonge of status forms snd position descriptions on ali of the
sbwa. for eweluarfon of pesition zradu.

If these chenges meot with your mpprevel, I would lfke very
smach to Snplement thes effectiva mﬂ 1, 1986, 1 will leok forvasd to
discuasing thie with you €t your sonvenience.

#inrerely yveurs,

. Jotm C. Wheslar

- Jewlvg
Encloguts
ect H. A. Ginivm
egy J. I. Eohiborg
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To: Joseph I, Kohlberg - FCCD

Fr: D. A. Raetz
Ret MDCC'OrganizatiBnal changes

To keep you informed regarding planned changes at MDCC,
1've enclesed a revised organizational chart which identi-
fies filled and vacant positions, The vacant positions
shown were efther previously dpproved or submitted with
the 1980 budget packege, The planned incresses in manning
are besed on two main considerstions: the 1) inmplementa-
tion of three shift operations, which began in November,
1979, and 2) support of. dsles and profit income goals for
the period 1980-82. The chenges,; which sre to become
effective on March 1, 1980, include the following:

. Bi1l Bowman, presently Plent Superintendent, Grade
36, will become Menager, Technical Services, It is

expected that his new responsibilities will support
a Grade 36. .7

. Mike Mathews, presently Production Control Manager,
Grade 32, will become Production Superintendent, An
initial increase to Grade 34 is requested.

» With Les Bartel's retirement on January 31, 1980,
John Laxton will become Die Casting Production Mana-
ger. John will have total responsibility for die
casting operations. We suggest a Grade 34,

. Walt Hohner, presently Tool Room Foreman, Grade 32,
will become Supervisor, Manufacturing Engineering.
Wait will retain the Tool Reoom snd pick up respornsi-
bility for Plant Maintenance. Recommend a Grade 34.

. Maynard Pribek, presently titled Industrisl Engineer,
Grade 32 will become Supervisor, Industrisl Engineer-

ing to reflect Increased responsibilicies, Suggest
a Grade 34,

. Joseph Baldukas, Production Control Manasger, Grade
32, hired January 7, 1980 to replace Mike Mathews,
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MDCC Organizational chanpes

The wajor chenge, &8 you csn see, will be in Mathew's and
Bowman's responsibility. Position degcriptions to docu-

ment and support the new grade level requests wiil be de-
veloped, at your request,

Please let me know if, you need any additional information

ot this time,
1,7“@-—-

ce: J. C. Wheelerf
R, &. Gindvan

DR ¢ jmb
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M{\ FISHER CONTROLS COMPANY e

R b{'}ﬁ l MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158 ﬁﬁsﬁEé'

Inter-Office Correspondence

M - | March 26, 1979
; ht Wheeler |

Attentio

Subject:  May 1979 Organization Charts

As you will recall, last year we targeted to update all organization
charts semi-annually in May and November. With the May 1 date in
mind, I am asking you to review your attached organization chart(s)
and return to me by April 10, 1979. We recognize that in many cases
there will be changes pending which cannot be announced by that date.
In this situation, please don't hesitate to show the position title

with no incumbent, and at least that much information can be included
on your chart.

If your chart is correct as shown. simplv change the date and vefuwn
to me. If you prefer not to respond, we propose to reissue your
present chart under the new date. Please remember that new charts

can be issued any time you feel that sufficient changes have occurred,
The goal of publishing the charts semi-annually merely assures that
our company organization charts will be current, at least twice a year.

At

R. A. Ginivan

Thank you.

RAG/ jky

cc: T. M. Shive
John Wells

P.S. If there are any changes on your chart, please have it
approved by the officer involved.
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ER CONTROLS COMPANY

MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158

nter-Office Correspondence

; AN
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April 24, 1979

Subject:  MDCC QRGANIZATION CHART

Jim, attached is a copy of the MDCC organization chart as we
have up-dated it. Please let me know if everything on it is
okgy or if there are any correction, additions, etc. fo be
“made,

Thank you for your assistance.

net Yoch
Secretary

Jy
Enclosure

P.S. If the chart is fine the way it is just give me a call.
My number is {515) 754-3980.
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” SHER CONTROLS COMPANY .
‘ MARSHALLTOWN, I0WA 50158 f"? H.E;ﬂij

inter-Office Correspondence
October 11, 1979

To: J. C. Wheeler

Attention:

Subject: December 1979 Organization Charts

As you wWill recall, last year we targeted to update all organization charts
semi-annually. To that end, I am asking you to review your attached organization
chart(s) and return to me by October 29, 1979, anticipating changes as of
December 1, 1979. We recognize that in many cases there will be changes pending
which cannot be announced by that date. In this situation, please don't hesitate

to show the position title with no incumbent, and at least that much information
can be included on your chart.

If your chart is correct as shown, simply change the date and return to me. If
you prefer not to respond, we propose to reissue your present chart under the new
date. Please remember that new charts can be issued any time you feel that suf-
ficient changes have occurred. The goal of publishing the charts semi-annually

merely assures that our company organization charis will be current, at least
twice a year.

Thank you.

D or-fpuon

R. A. Ginivan
) RAG: Jvw

cc: T. M. Shive
John Wells

P.S. If there are any changes on your chart, please have it approved by the
Of ficer invelved.
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. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned states on oath, that she caused a copy of the below named pieadi_ng(s)
to be served upon the attorney(s) named below, at their respective address(es) as indicated on
April 3, 1995,

MOTION TO SUPPLEMENT THE RECORD

By Messenger:

Andrew R. Running
Robert B. Ellis
KIRKLAND & ELLIS
200 East Randolph Drive
Chicago, lllinois 60601

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN {o before
me t_)lis 3rd day of April, 1995.

Spsa )by

NOTARY PUBLIC

L

e

"OFFICIAL SEAY"

A MABONEY 1
Notary Public; Stata of Dliniols

My Cammixsion Expires 8/30/88 §

A s
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

INC.,

MILWAUKEE DIE, CASTING CO., )
SLYMAN INDUSTRIES, INC. and )
THERESA A. SLYMAN )
)
Plainiffs, )
' )
\Z ) No. 93-C-0325

: )

FISHER CONTROLS INTERNATIONAL, ) Judge Reynolds
)
}
}

Defendant.

PLAINTIFFS' SURREFLY IN OPPOSITION
1‘0 M()’JPI(}N FOB. SUMMARY JUBGME‘NT ON

1. SUCCESSOR LIABTLITY
Plaintiffs Were Not Reguired To "Plead” Fisher's Successar Liability
Fisher's eriticism thar plaintifis did not plead a successor Lability "theory® is ifrelevant,
for plaintiffs have allaged that Fisher is Hable as an ownerfoperator under CERCLA §107.
Fisher's successor liabilily falls within this ssction. Anspee Co. v. Johnson Controis, Inc., 922
F.2d 1240, 1247 (6th Ciz. 1991)(cited by Fisher at Reply, . 6)
Moreover, Fishef should not even be permitted to make this objection because it withhcld
until Decmber 30, 1994 the documents relating to its 1975 acquisition which reveal that the

transaction was an asset purchase, (See, letters, Caruso to Running, 12/21/94, and Running o

Caruso, 12/30/94, copies artached heretx) Before it finatly prodnced these documents, Fisher
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had {ncorrectly asserted that its 1975 acquisition was only 8 stock purchase.! Having concealed
the truth. for as long as itcould, Fisher cannot reasonably argue that plaintiffs delayed in asserting
successor lability.

Fisher's only argument on the de facro merger issue is that its Tenvary 14, 1975 sale of
the asscts of old MDCC to its wholly owned subsidiary (mew MDCC) purporiedly destroyed
"continvity of enterprise® and thereby preclvdes the Court from ruling that Fisher entered into
a de facte merger when (carlier on January 14, 1975) it purchased old MDCC's assets. (Reply,
pp- I-T)

However, Fisher has misrepresented the case law. Fisher cites a footnote in John S.

Boyd, Inc. v. Boston Gas Co., 992 F.2d 401 (Ist Cir. 1993), where the court of appeals

observed that a parent corporation's (Bastern's) purchase of a compaay (Lynn Gas) — and its
purported same day sale of Lynn Gas o its subsidizny (Boston Gas) —~ "does not alter any
liability" under CERCLA. As the court noted:

Technically, NEES sold the Lynn Gas Co. fist to Bastern Gas and
Fuel Associates, the parent eompany of Boston Gas. Eastéon then

.sold Lymn Gas to Boston Gas on the same day. Because this
intermediate transaction does not alter amy liability in this case by
stafute, contract, ot any other norm, we discuss Fastarn no further,
Id, at 407, n. 5 (Reply, p. 4. 5)

Fisher contends that the “two part tranzaction” in Boyd was "similar to New MDCC's

acquisition of Old MDCC". Id., p. 4. However, the appellats opinion cited by Fisher does aot

' As late as Deccmber 22, 1994, Fisher represented to the Court that it "acquired
the common stock of MDCC on January 13, 19757 — without acknowledging its asset purchase
from old MDCC on January 14, 1975, (See, Fisher's “Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment” on the state law claims in the original complaint, §1)

2




03/31/85 09:52 TFAX 312 881 2200 KEIRKLAND & ELLIS

PN N

reven! the detils of the initial transaetion between NEBS and Eastern. Those facts are st forth

in the disteict conet's opinion, and they helfe Fistier's contention:
[Mn 1972, NEES executed 2 purchase and sale agrecment with
Bastern Boterprises, the owner of Boston Gas, concerning threa
subsidiarics, including Lynn Gas, The SBC described the trénsac-
tion as follows: 'Cnncurrcnﬂy with this acquisition of [93.77% of]
the stock [of Lynn Gas] ,.., Eastera will cause Lyna [Gas .. ] o
zell for cash all of [its] axmmﬁoston(iascmxpany
Boston Gas will assume [its) Habilities, John Bovd Co. v. Baswn
Gas Co., 1992 11,5, Dist, LEXTS 13088, +B (. Mass. August 18,
1992) (copy of LEXIS apuunn auached here.to)

Unlils Fisher, the parent corporation in Boyd (Bastern) did not acquirs the assets of the
company which was sold (Lyrn Gas), 1t merely acquired the majority of Lynn Cas' stock with
a provision in the porchase instrument that it would direct Lynn Gas io convey its assets to
Boston Gas. Id. Thers was no con;mtion' in Bayd that lEas:em-, by purchasing stock, had
entered into a de facre merger with Lynn Gas. Therefore, the Boyd footuote (cited by Fisher)
was obviously not a "ruling" on a non-existent de facte merger question, ‘The court merely noted
that "because™ the intermediate transaction (Hastern's purchase of Lynn Gas' stock) *[did] not
aliec™ the CERCLA liabilities, there was no reason to discuss Eastern ay further in the text of
the opinion.  Bayd pravides no support to Fisher.

Pisher has similarly misstated the facts and holding of In re Acushner River & New
Bedford Harbor, 712 F.Supp. 1010 (D. Mass, 1989), cited in our Memcrandum. (Reply, p. 5)

Unlike Fisher, the parcat corporation in Acushnret (RTE) did not purchase the assets and

liabilities of the company which was sold (Belleville). There was a three-party conitract among;

the seller (Belaville), the parent corporation (RTE) and the subsidiary (Aerovox), but the

subsidiary (Aerovox) acquired Bellevilla's assets direetly from Belleville:

& oog
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. Aerovox acquired 2l of Balleville's assets, property, and rights
of any kind, incloding the rights to the name "Aerovox®. Aerovox
agreed to assuma all of Belleville's balance sheet Habilitics and to
perform all of its contracts ... . 712 F.Supp. at 1012.

The parent corporation's (RTE's) role as a party to the contract was limited to providing
its stock as consideration for its subsidiary's (Aerovox's) aequisition of Belleville's assots and
lighilities, /4. Since RTE did not purchase Wose assets and Liabilities, thete was a0 contention
that RTE was liable as & sucoessor corporation, and obviously, there was no roling by the court
on that non-existent issue, Fisher quotes the court's observation that “[ajequiring Belleville
througha wholly-owned subsidiary way an effective way for RTE to protect itself from lability”,
but Fisher forgets that aew MDCC acquired old MDCC's assets/liabilities through Fisher - the

exact opposite of the situation in Acushnet, Id, at 1017, Acushaet provides no support to
Eisher,

Fisher also agserts that *if a larpe corporation crcated a wholly owned subsidiary to
acquire the asscis and continue the enterprise of a CERCILA responsible party, the subsidiary
wouwld be lisble as a successor ... " (Reply, p. 6, citing Allautie Richfield Co. v. Blosenski,
847 F.Supp. 1261, 1292 (B.D. Pa. 1994)) That statement is inapposite, for Fisher did not
“creale a wholly owned subsidiary to acquire® old MDOC's assets. It was Fisher, not new

MDCC, that entered into the purchase contract with the Schroeders and directly acquired old
MDCC's assets.

? RTB's role was comparable to the rolg of Monsanio (Fisher's corporate parent)
in Fisher's 1973 acquisition of gld MDCC -- for Fisher delivered Monsanto stock to old MDCC
for distribution to its shareholders as consideration for its purchase.  There i no contention that

Monsanto. entered into a de facto merger with old MDCC —. jisst as in Acushnet, thers was no
contention that RTE enteved into a de Jfoero merger with Belleville,

4
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Fisher is unable to cite & single case where a purchasing corporation was excussd from

- successor liability because, following its asset purchase, it transferred the “enferprise” to &

wholly-tweed subsidiary, That type of secondary transfer does not disturb any of the factors
which are necessary to find continuity of enterprise: "continuity of management, personnel,
physical location, assets and operations.” (Réply, p. 3) Fisher is asking this Court to add &
requiremenit to the "continuity of enterprise” test (thut the parent corporation must own and
operaic the enterprise irself instead of through a subsidiary), but such 2 requirement would be
unprecedented under state law and CERCLA, and it would contradiet the equitable nature of the
de facto merger docirine. (Pltfs," Memorandum in Opp. ("Memo,™), pp. 11, 12, and cases cited
(herein)

Fisher; not plaintiffs, has confused successor and derivative liability. (Reply, p. 6)
Where a corporation purchases another company in = tranisaction which meets each criteria for
a de facto merger, the purchasing corporation caninot escape successor liability by subsequerntly
transferring its newly-acquired “enierpﬁae;' to 8 subsidiary, The secondary transferis stmply an
internal corporate decision which may limit the parent corporation's liability for evenss which
occur gfier the secondary tranfer is completed (detivative Yability), but therc 8 no authority for
the proposition that the secondary. transfor would nullify the legal effact of the afready completed

asset purchase (successor liability),* Fisher's argiiment on the de facto merger issue is without

merit.

3

This is particularly true where, as here, the initial acquisition was purposefully
structured as a tax-free reorganization under Intemal Revenue Code §368 and the parent
corporation reaped the benefits of that acquisition. (Memo., pp. 15-17) Fisher makes no reply
to the plaintiffs' "tax benefits” argument, It does not deny that it received the tax benefits, and
does not dispute that its tax heneflts are 4 significant factor in assessing its successor liability.

3
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2. QWNER LIABILITY

Fisher eriticizes the plaintiffs for fing a "single, unpublished distsict court opinion®
(Bvuck Components, Inc. v, Beatrie Ca.), wherein Judge Conln accoriely stated the rule that
under CERCLA, awner Hability may be mpnsed againgt shareholders based on their own conduct
(and ot derivatively) in two alternative situations: (1) where the shareholders become °record
owners of the contaminated propoerty™; or (2) withont record ownership, whege the sharehbldem
exexcised mnﬁol over the site in question {"sife mnﬁul"} '19-94 1.5, Dist. LEXTS 13319 (N.D.
. 19%4) Wisher does not contest that holding. (Reply, p. 7

Fisher now cltes to the First Circuit's decision in Boyd, supre, for its claim that
corporations thet merely serve as "conduits”™ are not record owners — buf as sef forth above,
Fisher-is unfamiliar with the facts of that case. The parent corporation in Boyd (Bastern)
purchased the stock of Lynn Gas. It never “ewned® the contaminated property, and there was
no contention that it was an "owner*. (1992 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 13088 at *R).

We have alrcady distinguished Fisher's remaining ‘conduit cases® as cited on page 8 of
its Reply. Those cases (where a shareholder owned the property only one time, for less then 24
hours) are inapposite because Fisher owned the property twice (in 1975 and 1981/82) and also
had site control, as evidenced by its ability in 1981 to command the return of the property from

tew MDCC for purposes of the sale 1o the Slymans (as well as its control over the limited PCB

cleanup as fully set forth in our Memoraodum),

! Judge Conlon cited ample avthority for this holding, and contrary to Fisher's

desire for the plaintiffs to cite more cases, it is unnecessary to *string cite™ the cases in our brief.
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3. OPERATOR LIABILITY

Fisher's claim that it had only “isol_atejdemployeamfetyand ‘environmental' contacts with
new MDCC is refuted by fhe facts which are fully st forth in our Memoranidum, Since
summary judgaient should be granted only “if there is no geauine issue as fo any material fact™}
all facts mest be read in a Tght most favorable fo plaintifls; and plainttifs are entitled Lo all
reasonable inferences from the evidence, Fisher's facual arginents are pladnly iosufficient 1o
warrant a summnary ng®L McCoy v. WGN Continental Broadeasting Co., 957 B.24 368,

371 (Fth Cir, 1992); Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Ine., 471 1.8, 242, 248 (1986).
Fisher cluims ia a footnote that the plaintiffs should not be permitted to cite Monsanto's
Involvement as evidence that Fisher was an operator, but that argument is unpmhasiva. (Reply;

. 10, 0. 53 In its memorandym in support of this motion, Fisher argued that *Fisher and its

- parent Monsanto Company excreised some oversight ... [but] their overall involvement was:

minimal,” (Fisher's Memo., p. 7, {10) Now that plaintiffs have presented substantial evidence

to refute Fishter's view of its and Monsanto's coordinated “oversight” activites, Fisher suddenly

argues thal Monsanto's role was completely unrelated and should not be considered. This is

specious. The testimony of Art Rogers, among ofher evidence, establishes that Fisher requeated
Meonsanto's assistance and both companies were acting in concert with respect to their supervision
of MDCC's environmental affairs.  (Plifs.’ Memo,, pp. 6-10, 18, 19)
4. THE STANDING OF THERESA SLYMAN AND SLYMAN INDUSTRIES
Fisher misstates the facts by asserting that the fees paid by Thercsa Slyman and Slyman
Ingustries to Robert Parsons are not "respouse cosis” becanse Mr. Parsons was refained by

plaintiffs' attorneys as an expert witness in connection with this case; As set forth in our

Aol
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Memorandum, Mr, Parsons has bem regamcd for adusi pmpoac In sddition to providing expert

testimony, he hay been retained to investipate, assess and evaluate the extent of the PCB
contamination . already' ideatlfied at the MDCC facility and recommend fiture appropriate
sctivities consistent with the I\Iahonal Cunﬁngmcy Plan (NCP). (Parson Affidavit, §3-6); (T

Styman Affidavit, $93 ,4); (G. Slyman Afﬁda\ut, 993, 4; see also, letter, Caruso to Running,

3130095, copy attached hercto); Gindell v. American Motors Corp., 108 R.R.D. 94, 35 (WD
N.Y. 1985) (holding that an expert may serve more than one function in 2 £45¢). The cases cited
in our Memorandum (p. 21) -- which Fisher simply ignores -- establish that Mr. Parsons' fees
for his investigatory services and recommendations consistent with the NCP are recoverable
respanse costs. Therefore, Theresa Slyman and Styman Indusries have CBRCLA sianding.

5. FISHER'S JOINT AND SEVERAL
LIABILITY UNDER CERCLA 5 107(a)

Fisher exroneously accuses plaintiffs of migrepreseating as the majority view the position

that 2 poteatially responsible party (PRE) suehi as MDCC may bring an action for joint and
several liability under CERCLA § 107(3) (Reply, p. 13). Fitst, the cascs citod by plaintiffs at
Pages 23-26 of theit Memoranduny are anything but Qﬁﬁdated. With one exception, each case was
decided after Congress amended CERCLA in 1986 to inglnde an express.right of contribution
under §113. Purthermore, plaintiffs have cited three cases decided since 1991 which specifically
reject Fisher's argument that only an *innocent” plainfiff can bring 2 oost recovery action under

§ 107(a), Sece e.g., U.8. v, Krayner, 757 F.Supp. 397, 416 (D. N.L. 1991)

¥ Fisher alsoignores the standing which Theresa Slyman and Slyman Industries have
upder the neclamtmy Judgement Act, which confers standing upon any party that has a legal

infersst threatenied in an actual controversy. Collin County v. Homeawners Assoc., 915 R.2d
i 167, 170 (5th Cir. 1590).
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More imporiantly, with respect fo a PRP such a3 MDCC that has initiated a cleanup
process without governmental prodding, plaintiffs’ cases represent the majority view. Fishes
cannot cite a single case which holds that a PRP wiio spontaneously initiates a cleanup without
governmental pressure is preciuded from bringing & cost recovery action for jolnt and several
lisbility under CERCLA § 107(s). 'We have already responded 1o Akzo Coatings; Inc. v,
Ainger Corp., 30 R3d 761 (7th Cir. 19%); United Technologies v. Browning-Ferris
Industries, 33 F.3d 96 {1st Cir. 1994)%; and A'maco_{_?ﬂ Co. v. Borden, Inc., 889 F.2d 664 (5th
Cir, 1992). Fisher now cites United States v, Colorada & Eastern R.R. Co.., 25 Env. L. R.
20,308 (10th Cir. .1994)" ~ but the PRP in Colorads & Easternt did not fnitiate a cleanup
spontaneously, It was sued by the U.S. E.F.A. and later filed a cross-claim apainst other PRP's,

1995 U.S5. App. LBXIS 5562 at *3-4, This distinction from the ingtant case is critical, As stated

in Kramter, supra:

[Slections 107 and 113 sexve distinct purposes. CERCLA was
enacted to facilimte cleanup of the tens of thousands. of hatardous
waste sites iit thiy country. Section 107 permits ihe Govérnment.
of & private party to go in, cléan 4 the mess, pay the bill, then
collect ol its costs not inconsistent with the NCP from other
responsiblg parties — éven ﬁplainhff was also respousible for the
confemipation. Any FRFis entitled under section 113 to bring a.
contribution action against other PRES —~ mcludmg the PRP who
previously cleaned up the mess and wa.spa:d for its trouble through
a section 107 proceeding — to agportion costs equitably among all
the PRPs. Practically speaking, section 107, permits 3 PRP,

including the Governmient, to collsct all its response costs, even
those: that, the samea PRP may bé required to pay back (o the other

§  United Technologies supports plaintiffs’ position. that PRPs who spontaneonsly
initiate the ¢leanup of 4 contaminated facility may sue under § 107¢a). 33 F.3d at 99-100 fu. 8.

7 The opinion cited by Fisher has been withdrawn and i5 replaced by the opinion at

1995 U.8. App. LEXIS 5562 (10th Cir, 1995)(capy attached hereto)
]

oLz
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PRPs as iis equifable share in a section 113 proceeding, 757
F.Supp. at 416.

The cases cited by Fisher do not dispute this statement of the law, PRPs such as MDCC
thatl spontanecusly initdawe a cleanup should be permitied to recover all of their responise costs
under CERCLA §107. This Court should reject Fisher's attsmpt to penalize MDCC for taldng
the initiafive with respect to this cleanup.

CONCEUSION
WHERERORHE, for all the reasons stated in this Surreply and in our Memorandum in

Opposition to Fisher's Motion, the Court should deny Fisher's Motion for Summary Judgment

-

on Counts I, I and I of the Amendeqd Complaint.

Dated this 30th day of March, 1995.

Respectfilly submitted,

MILWAUKEE DIE CASTING CO,, SLYMAN
INDUSTRIES, INC, and THERESA A. SLYMAN

James R. Pigliulo

Carl A. Gigante
Carmen I}, Carusp
FORAN & SCHULTZ
30 North LaSalle Strest
Suita 3000

Chicago, Hlineis 60602
(312) 368-8330
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